II.

III.

IV.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

CHELAN DOUGLAS

5 Regional Port

AUTHORITY
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Meeting Agenda
February 25, 2020
9:00 am
One Campbell Parkway, East Wenatchee, WA 98802

CALL TO ORDER

*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order.

INTRODUCTIONS

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

CONSENT AGENDAS

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of February 11%", 2020
Meeting; January 2020 Commission Calendar; and Check Register Pages #2020-01-#2020-
03.

PMA: Approval of Pangborn Memorial Airport Register Pages #1929-#1931.

POCC CONSENT AGENDA: Approval of Check Register Pages #2020-01-#2020-03; and
Resolution No. 2020-04 voiding warrants #22987 & #23016.

PODC CONSENT AGENDA: Approval of Check Register Pages #2020-01-#2020-02.

PRESENTATION
» Entiat Chamber of Commerce - Alyce Brown and Renee Swearingen
« WSU SBDC - Ron Nielsen

CDRPA ACTION ITEMS
(1) Resolution No. 2020-04 Adopting Pangborn Memorial Airport Rules & Regulations
(2) Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Capacity Project Proposed Budget Modification

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT GOVERNING BOARD ACTION ITEMS

(3) Resolution No. 2020-01 Adopting Pangborn Memorial Airport Rules & Regulations
CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

(4) Property Deep Dive — Cashmere Mill District

PUBLIC COMMENT

CDRPA Meeting Agenda February 25", 2020 Page 1 of 2



XI.

XII.

XIII.

STAFF REPORTS/MISC. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
CED

Director of Finance & Administration

Director of Economic & Business Development
Director of Airports

Facilities & Property Development Manager

CTC Manager

REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting. The purpose
must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110. Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g))

XIV. ADJOURN

PLEASE NOTE: The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting.

If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be
recognized by the President. When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments.
The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are
encouraged to honor this principal.

The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3)
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.

CDRPA Meeting Agenda February 25", 2020 Page 2 of 2



CHELAN DOUGLAS

Cb Regional Port

AUTHORITY

Board of Directors
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Special Meeting Minutes
One Campbell Parkway
East Wenatchee, WA 98802
February 11%*, 2020

9:00 am
Present: Directors
JC Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director
Donn Etherington, Director Alan Loebsack, Director
Rory Turner, Director Mark Spurgeon, Director
Staff
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer Trent Moyers, Director of Airports
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin. Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel
Craig Larsen, Business Development Manager Pete Fraley, Legal Counsel

Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager

Stacie de Mestre, Facilities & Property Development Mgr.
Sarah Deenik, Communications Coordinator

Cami Harris, Executive Assistant

Guests:

Randy Asplund

Rhona Baron, Cascade Foothills Farmlands Association
Eddy Alenzo, Cherry Creek Media

Steve Sandman, Cherry Creek Media

Michaella Collins, Cherry Creek Media

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order at
9:00 am. Introductions were made.

Conflict of Interest - None.
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA:

The Consent Agenda consisting of minutes of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
(CDRPA) meeting of January 27", 2020 was presented and the following action was taken:

Motion No. 02-01-20 CDRPA
Moved by: JC Baldwin
Seconded by: Jim Huffman

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRFA)
Consent Agenda consisting of minutes of January 27", 2020 meeting,
as presented.
Motion passed 5-0.
Commissioner Spurgeon excused absence
for January 27", 2020 Meeting

February 11", 2020 Page 1 of 5



PRESENTATIONS:

Cascade Foothills Farmlands Association — Rhona Baron provided an overview of Cascade
Foothills Farmlands Association activities for 2019 including highlights of Ag Tourism in the
area. She provided an outlook for activities planned for 2020 and beyond including Wine and
Cider Walks. They will print 50,000 copies of their popular annual wine tasting map to
distribute to 150 locations statewide. She thanked the Board for their continued support.

Cherry Creek Media - Eddy Alonzo, Steve Sandman, and Michaella Collins provided a
presentation and proposal for digital media advertising in the Silicon Valley area. They
reviewed the benefits of this targeted advertising and provided information on ways to recruit
companies to the Greater Wenatchee Valley from Silicon Valley using digital media. Discussion
ensued. At the direction of the Board, staff will pursue more information prior to presenting a
campaign proposal.

CDRPA ACTION ITEMS:

Electric Vehicle & Alternate Fuel Procurement Policy - Kuntz presented proposed policy
regarding electric vehicle & alternate fuel procurement. RCW 43.19.648 requires state
agencies and local governments fuel publically owned vehicles, vessels, and construction
equipment with electricity or biofuels to the extent practicable. This proposed policy will put
the CDRPA in compliance with the RCW. Discussion ensued and the following action was
taken:

Motion No. 02-02-20 CDRPA
Moved by: JC Baldwin
Seconded by: Mark Spurgeon

To approve the CDRPA Policy Regarding Electric Vehicle & Alternative
Fuel Procurement, as presented.

Motion passed 6-0.

CDRPA Resolution No. 2020-02 Concerning Property Management - Kuntz presented
CDRPA Resolution No. 2020-02 concerning Management of Real Property. This is a joint
resolution providing details on the management of property by the Regional Port Authority on
behalf of the Port of Chelan and Port of Douglas County. Discussion ensued and the following
action was taken:

Motion No. 02-03-20 CDRPA

Moved by: Mark Spurgeon

Seconded by: Alan Loebsack
To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2020-02 concerning property
management.

Motion passed 6-0.

Authorization to Proceed to Bidding Phase - US Forest Service Helipad - Kuntz and
Moyers provided information on the status of the US Forest Service Helipad. Staff is seeking
authorization to proceed to the bidding phase of the project. Discussion ensued and the
following actions were taken:

Motion No. 02-04-20 CDRPA
Moved by: JC Balawin
Seconded by: Mark Spurgeon

To Authorize the Director of Airports to solicit bids for the
constructfon of a Helipad for the US Forest Service at Pangborn
Memorial Airport.

Motion passed 6-0.
February 11", 2020 Page 2of 5



Motion No. 02-05-20 CDRPA

Moved by: Alan Loebsack

Seconded by: Jim Huffman
To accept the plans & specification and Engineer’s estimate for the
US Forest Service Helipad project at Pangborn Memorial Airport
and place on file for public inspection.

Motion passed 6-0.

A 10-minute break was called at 10:30 am to 10:40 am.

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY PUBLIC HEARING

Commissioner Turner opened the Public Hearing to amend the Port of Chelan County
Comprehensive Scheme of Harbor Improvements at 10:40 am. An opportunity for public
comment was provided; however, no public comment was given. Commissioner Turner closed
the public hearing at 10:42 am.

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY (POCC) ACTION ITEMS:

POCC Resolution No. 2020-01 amending the Port of Chelan County Comprehensive
Scheme of Harbor Improvements - This amendment incorporates into the Comprehensive
Plan certain real property purchased by the Port of Chelan County. Properties include Lineage
South in Wenatchee, Gene Kelley Property at Chelan Airport, and Executive Flight Building in
East Wenatchee. Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:

Motion No. 02-06-20 POCC
Moved by: JC Baldwin
Seconded by: Rory Turner

To adopt POCC Resolution No. 2020-01 amending the
Comprehensive Scheme of Harbor Improvements.

Motion passed 3-0.

POCC Resolution No. 2020-03 Concerning Property Management - Kuntz presented
POCC Resolution No. 2020-03 concerning Management of Real Property. This is a joint
resolution providing details on the management of property by the Regional Port Authority on
behalf of the Port of Chelan County and Port of Douglas County. The following action was
taken:

Motion No. 02-07-20 POCC

Moved by: Rory Turner

Seconded by: JC Baldwin
To adopt POCC Resolution No. 2020-03 concerning property
management.,

Motion passed 3-0.

February 11", 2020 Page 3 of 5



PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY (PODC) ACTION ITEMS:

PODC Resolution No. 2020-02 Concerning Property Management - Kuntz presented
PODC Resolution No. 2020-02 concerning Management of Real Property. This is a joint
resolution providing details on the management of property by the Regional Port Authority on
behalf of the Port of Chelan County and Port of Douglas County. The following action was
taken:

Motion No. 02-07-20 PODC

Moved by: Mark Spurgeon

Seconded by: Jim Huffman
To adopt PODC Resolution No. 2020-02 concerning property
management.

Motion passed 3-0.

INFORMATION & UPDATES:

Surplus Property /2001 Ford F250 Pickup Truck - Per the Delegation of Authority
Resolution No. 2019-18, Kuntz has the authority to surplus personal property that does not
exceed a value of $10,000. Kuntz certifies the 2001 Ford F250 Pickup Truck is surplus to the
needs of the Port and will be placed in a public auction. No Board action needed per
Delegation of Authority Resolution.

Property “Deep Dive” 3310 5'" Street SE, East Wenatchee (ACCOR Building) - Kuntz
& Lough provided detailed information on the property including:

Building purchase history

Tenants lease history

Financials — History of Expenses & Revenues
Outstanding Debt Service

STAFF REPORTS & UPDATES:

Kuntz provided information and updates including:
» Douglas County PUD update.
» Recent public records request.
« Subsplash lease extension at Pybus will terminate June 30, 2020.
» Fibro update.
» CARB Loan Program.
» Orondo River Park — opens April 1%,
e lLineage North Property update.
¢ Alcoa update.

Lough provided information and updates including:
¢ 90-day past due tenant report.

Larsen provided information and updates including:
e Several recent inquiries regarding available properties.
¢ Cridlebaugh is in California all week attending the World Ag Conference.
o Cashmere Mill District prospect and current tenant expansion update.

Moyers provided information and updates including:
¢ Update on the Approach Lighting System - continue to explore FAA Funding.
s Update on his presentation at the Tourism Summit last week.

February 11", 2020 Page 4 of 5



Public Comment — None.

Items from Board of Directors - None

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting was adjourned at 1:00 pm.

Signed and dated this 25" day of February, 2020.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

JC Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director
Donn Etherington, Director Mark Spurgeon, Director
Rory Turner, Director W. Alan Loebsack, Director

February 11", 2020 Page 50f 5



January 2020

Date Meeting Location JCB |RT|DE| JH |MS| AL
1/6 CDRPA Review Economic Dev. Grant Applications CDRPA OFFICE X A
1/8 NCWEDD Meeting Chelan City Hall X
1/8 Meeting with Zack Lodato Seattle Yoga X
1/8 District One Meeting Bobs Classic X
1/9 CDTC Meeting CTC X
1/9 GWATA Kick Off Event Merchantile X X
1/9 Meeting with Jim Kuntz Bella Bistro X
1/10 Mitsubishi Meeting CDRPA OFFICE X
1/10 Meeting with Bill Gaines & Jim Kuntz CDRPA OFFICE X
114 CDRPA Commission Meeting CDRPA Office X X1 X] X | XX
115 Drove to CORPA Office for Bridgeport Meeting (Cancelled) CDRPA OFFICE X X
1/15 GWATA Board Meeting Mercantile X
115 Bridgeport City Hall for Grant Award Announcement Bridgeport City Hall X
1/16 Econimic Roundtable Lunch Eastmont Community Center Georgia Street X1 % X X
116 Meeting With Greg Taylar Liberty Orchards X
117 Meeting with Blake Baldwin Bella Bistro X
1/21 City of Chelan Mayor & Jim Kuntz City of Chelan X
1/21 Wenatchee Valley Chamber Meeting Wenatchee Chamber Office X
1122 Met with Lineage Team CDRPA OFFICE X
1/22 Community Leadership Advisory Group Meeting CDRPA OFFICE X
1/22 Economic Dev Meeting CDRPA OFFICE %
1/23 Economic Dev. Task Force Meeting CDRPA Office X
1/23 Opportunity Zone Meeting Wenatchee Chamber Office X
1/27 CDRPA Commission Meeting CDRPA Office X 3 |l X
1/27 Douglas County PUD Meeling Douglas County PUD %
1/27 WPPA Port Day (Travel) WPPA Port Day X
1/28 Port Day Olympia\WPPA X
1/28 Meeting with Representative Goehner Olympia/\WPPA "
1/28 Meeting with Representative Steele Olympia/WPPA e
1/28 Meeting with Senator Hawkins Olympia/WPPA %
1/29 WPPA Port Day (Travel) QOlympia/WPPA X
1/29 Meeting with Bret Pittsinger, Jim K., Ron C., Craig L. Baker Flats Office X
1/30 Pre-App for Lineage McKittrick Street X

denotes multiple meetings are same day




Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

Check Register Listing
Issued Register # Reason First # Last # Amount
01/15/20 _2020-01 Payables 5001 5036 §$  115,302.07
01/31/20 2020-02  Payroll 5037 5040 §$ 227,366.23
01/31/20 2020-03  Payables 5041 5004 $  46,917.68

94 warrants, EFTPS, and electronic payroll deposits for approval February 25, 2020 total:
$ 389,585.98

We, the undersigned Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, in the State of

Washington, do hereby certify the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received
and that Warrants listed above are approved for payment.

Executive Director d{)% M M

Dir. of Finance & Admin. /(\m@ NG \UQW@} Q(L%

Director

Director

Director

Check Register Listings 2020.xlsx 1of1



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Check Register

2020-01

We, the undersigned Directors of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, in the State of Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below
are approved for payment.

For approval January 15th, 2020, checks 5001-5036 in the amount of $ 115,302.07
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer éw Z/_;/}
Por B
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin | \ "I| 1(1 L U s '\’\\ ,'-'Lu,'—,':ﬂ
)
Is[it: d Claimant Purpose N(:::E:r Amount
CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER
01/15/20 Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Janitorial supplies 5011 230.48
01/15/20 e3 Solutions, Inc Fire alarm monitoring 5012 28.18
01/15/20 EMS Software Dean Evans & Assoc. Annual maintenance1 database 5013 3,692.10
01/15/20 Firefly Annual renewals 5015 6,086.51
01/15/20 Kelley Imaging Systems, Inc Kyocera copier lease 5019 168.19
01/15/20 Weinstein Beverage Co. Coffee service items 5032 8277
Net Confluence Technology Center 10,288.23
OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK
01/15/20 Chelan County Fire Dist #1 2020 fire protection 5007 9,634.02
01/15/20 Frontier January alarm systems 5018 237.72
Net Olds Station Business Park 9,871.74
DOWNTOWN WENATCHEE SOUTH
01/156/20 Chelan County PUD Electric service connection 5008 99.33
Net Downtown Wenatchee South 99.33
PANGBORN AIRPORT
01/15/20 AAAE Annual membership - RR 5001 275.00
01/15/20 AIrNAV, LLC Annual listing renewal 5002 405.00
01/15/20 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc Airport owners & op liability ins 5003 33,153.00
01/15/20 Brian Smith Payroll Advance 5005 500.00
01/15/20 Camryn Beidler Payroll Advance 5006 500.00
01/15/20 Firefly Annual renewals 5017 9,822.96
01/15/20 Local Tel Communications Phone, cable, internet 5023 708.97
01/15/20 Moon Security Services, Inc January security monitoring 5024 41.15
01/15/20 National Air Transportation Association 2020 membership 5025 1,352.00

1



01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20

01/15/20
01/15/20

01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20
01/15/20
01/156/20
01/15/20
01/16/20
01/15/20

ProDIGIQ 1st gtr Part 139 self-inspection
Verizon Wireless On call phones
World Fuel Services-Ascent Aviation January TotalFBO

Net Pangborn Airport

RPA OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER

Executive Flight February debt service
Keyhole Security Inc "B" keys - for Airlift
Net RPA Office/Aviation Center

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

Association of Washington Business 2020 dues
Columbia Basin Development League 2020 membership
Commercial Printing, Inc Business cards
Firefly Annual renewals
Leavenworth Chamber of Commerce 2020 membership

Local Tel Communications ShoreCare Partner annual supp

Office Depot Office supplies
Pacific Northwest Waterways Association 2020 membership
Ronald Cridlebaugh Payroll Advance

Washington Public Ports Association 2020 membership
Pacific Northwest Aerospace Alliance 2020 membership
Net Administrative & General

Voided

5028
5030
5033

5014
5020

5034
5008
5010
5016
5021
5022
5026
5036
5029
2031
5035

5004
5027

645.00
66.32
3198.20

47,788.60

7,500.00
91.36

7,591.36

1,000.00
625.00
471.47

20,463.89
275.00
909.23

90.22
630.00

2,000.00

13,048.00
150.00

39,662.81




Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Check Register
2020-02

We, the undersigned Directors of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, in the State of Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below
are approved for payment.

For approval January 31st, 2020, checks 5037-5040 in the amount of $ 227,366.23
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer W m
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin %@Jﬂw , Lﬂ()\@ﬂ ﬂﬂgﬂ\
(

IstT: d Claimant Purpose NT::E:'_ Amount
01/31/20 Payroll
01/31/20 Baldwin, JC January payroll ACH 1,417.67 -
01/31/20 Beidler, Camryn January payroll ACH 1,798.80
01/31/20 Camarillo Reyes, Laura January payroll ACH 2,596.22
01/31/20 Chatriand, Bobbie January payroll ACH 2,628.89
01/31/20 Cridlebaugh, Ron January payroll ACH 3,269.76
01/31/20 de Mestre, Stacie January payroll ACH 4,894.94
01/31/20 Deenik, Sarah January payroll ACH 4,014.67
01/31/20 Degnan, Tricia January payrall ACH 4,204.48
01/31/20 Dennis, Kyle January payroll ACH 115.44
01/31/20 Etherington, Donn January payroll ACH 1,625.55
01/31/20 Flaget, Todd January payroll ACH 4,064.38
01/31/20 Haley,Newton January payroll ACH 975.91
01/31/20 Harris, Cami January payroll ACH 3,001.91
01/31/20 Huffman, James January payroll ACH 611.89
01/31/20 Kuntz, James January payroll ACH 11,280.64
01/31/20 Lamb, Kennith January payroll ACH 4,933.88
01/31/20 Lamb, Shane January payroll ACH 1,486.17
01/31/20 Lape, Felicity January payroll ACH 4,027.23
01/31/20 Larsen, Craig January payroll ACH 6,012.79
01/31/20 Loebsack, W. Alan January payroll ACH 423.88
01/31/20 Lough, Monica January payroll ACH 7,471.32
01/31/20 Martinez, Rafael January payroll ACH 3,723.91
01/31/20 McKivor, Esther January payroll ACH 3,855.69
01/31/20 Moyers, Trent January payroll ACH 7,294,99
01/31/20 Orr, Marcus January payroll ACH 4,027.97
01/31/20 Parks, Lisa January payroll ACH 6,892.50
01/31/20 Ramos, Jorge January payroll ACH 1,077.61

Check Register 2020-02 Payroll 01-31-20,xlsx

1of2



01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20

Russ, Ron

Russell, Justin

Scott, Tristan

Smith, Charles

Spurgeon, Mark

Stutzman, Lynn

Turner, Rory

Vargas, Manuel

Department of Retirement Systems
HRA VEBA Trust

Sarah K. Deenik

US Treasury

Washington Counties Insurance Fund
Net Payroll

Voided

Check Register 2020-02 Payroll 01-31-20.xlsx

January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January payroll
January retirement
January VEBA
Sunshine fund
Payroll taxes
February insurance

20f2

ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
ACH
5037
5038

EFT
5040

5039

5,447.08
4,386.47
2,991.69
3,9586.77
483.10
817.30
1,368.47
4,360.43
34,816.80
2,000.00
120.00
41,146.46
27,752.57 -

227,366.23



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Check Register
2020-03

We, the undersigned Directors of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, in the State of Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below
are approved for payment.

For approval January 31st, 2020, checks 5041 - 5094 in the amount of $ 46,917.68
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer ;@L %
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin @W’]@Lﬂ LO0L Y
Is[;aut: d Claimant Purpose N?:::?E:r Amount
CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER
01/31/20 Cascade Natural Gas January gas 5049 13.78
01/31/20 Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Janitorial supplies 5054 554.24
01/31/20 Express Services, Inc. Contract labor 5059 324.45
01/31/20 Firefly Contract IT 5062 1,410.50
01/31/20 Frontier CTC telephones 5063 639.29
01/31/20 Keyhole Security Inc. January alarm monitoring 5069 27.13
01/31/20 Office Depot Office supplies 5076 23.84
01/31/20 Sherwin-Williams Paint, supplies 5082 224.03
01/31/20 Tricia Degnan. January mileage 5086 103.50
01/31/20 Weinstein Beverage Co. (Inc) Service supplies 5091 83.17
Net Confluence Technology Center 3,403.93
OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK
01/31/20 Cascade Natural Gas January gas 5048 13.78
01/31/20 Chelan County PUD January water 5050 724.88
01/31/20 Jerry's Auto Supply Fix a flat 5067 13.01
01/31/20 Keyhole Security Inc. January alarm monitoring 5070 209.22
Net Olds Station Business Park 960.89
DOWNTOWN WENATCHEE SOUTH
01/31/20 Cascade Natural Gas January gas 5047 408.83
Net Downtown Wenatchee South 408.83
PANGBORN AIRPORT
01/31/20 AAAE 2020 membership - TF 5041 275.00
01/31/20 Ag Supply Co. 162 g unleaded, 191.8 g diesel 5042 1,072.14
01/31/20 Cintas Corporation #8607 Coveralls, FBO uniforms 5051 137.60

Check Register 2020-03 01-31-20.xlsx

1of3



01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20

01/31/20
01/31/20

01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20

01/31/20

01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20

01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20
01/31/20

Douglas County Sewer District No. 1
Firefly

Moon Security Services, Inc

The Home Depot Pro

Two Rivers Terminal, LLC

Net Pangborn Airport

PANGBORN AIRPORT BUSINESS PARK
Alpine Aire Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Douglas County Sewer District No. 1
Net Pangborn Airport Business Park

RPA OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER
Cascade Natural Gas

Douglas County Sewer District No. 1
Graybeal Signs, Inc

Keyhole Security Inc.

The Home Depot Pro

Net RPA Office/Aviation Center

WATERVILLE AIRPORT
PUD NO 1 of Douglas County
Net Waterville Airport

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL
Cascade Loop Association
Coleman Oil Company
Commercial Printing, Inc.
Donn Etherington*

Firefly

J. C. Baldwin

Local Tel Communications
Mark M Spurgeon®

Rory Turner

Sarah K. Deenik

W Alan Loebsack.
Wageworks

January/February sewer
Contract IT

February security monitoring
Janitorial supplies

Rwy de-icer

Heater service - CWICC
January/February sewer

January gas
January/February sewer
CDRPA signs

January alarm monitoring
Janitorial supplies

Nov/Dec Electricity

2020 membership - CL
34 gal unleaded
Envelopes, letterhead
December mileage
Contract IT
December mileage
Telephones
December mileage
December mileage
January mileage
December mileage
January FSA admin

Washington Economic Development Assr 2020 membership
Wenatchee Valley Chamber of Commerce 2020 membership

Net Administrative & General

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING

Bobbie Chatriand.

Jim Huffman

Nancy's Party Rentals & Sales
RealMassive, Inc

Ron Cridlebaugh

Check Register 2020-03 01-31-20.xlsx

Logo wear, mileage

Logo wear, mileage

Tables, chairs - Ec Dev lunch
2020 data subscrip agreement
Travel/World Ag Expo - RC

20f3

5058
5060
5074
5084
5094

5043
5056

5046
5057
5064
5071
5085

5077

5045
5052
5053
5055
5061
5066
5072
5073
5080
5081
5088
5089
5090
5092

5044
5068
5075
5078
5079

317.34
1,732.80
42.24
199.02
10,795.32

14,571.46

871.82
86.00

957.82

3,712.46
156.52
1,605.91
53.61
83.30

5,611.80

128.00

128.00

231.57
94.02
831.60
47.68
2,258.06
106.02
1,017.18
27.61
33.35
11.10
73.31
100.00
940.00
6,000.00

11,771.50

201.97
207.50
726.41
4,000.00
573.00



01/31/20 Stacie de Mestre
01/31/20 Wenatchee World

Logo wear, mileage
Legal ad

Net Business Development & Marketing

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONT
01/31/20 IRIS
Net Economic Development Cont

Voided

Check Register 2020-03 01-31-20.xlsx

2020 contribution

Jof3

5083
5093

5065

5087

231.81
162.76

6,103.45

3,000.00

3,000.00



PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT

CHECK REGISTER LISTING

CHECK CHECK

DATE ISSUED REGISTER PAGE BEGINNING# ENDING # PAYMENT TOTAL
1/15/2020 Payables 1929 1233 1258 $ 225,436.12
1/15/2020 Payables 1930 1259 1267 $ 76,528.06
1/27/2020 Sales Tax ACH - - $ 8,097.45
1/31/2020 Payables 1931 1268 1280 § 16,635.28

For approval February 25th, 2020, 48 checks in the amount of $ 326,696.91

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Pangborn Memorial Airport Governing Board, in the
State of Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have
been received and that Vouchers listed above are approved for payment.

Airport Director R [Mﬁ —

e

Airport Auditor \:m@m Y KJO\CQUOH\

A

Port of Chelan County

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner




WARRENT REGISTER Page No. 1929
Date issued Claimant Purpose Warrrant Number Amount
1/15/2020 DEPARTMENT OF L&I 4th Qtr L&J 1233 4,979.51
1/15/2020 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPT  4th Qtr PFML 1234 485.87
1/15/2020 WA ST DEPT OF REVENUE 4th Qtr Leasehold Tax 1235 10,011.99
1/15/2020 DION GOTTI Deposit Refund 1236 245.00
1/15/2020 EXECUTIVE FLIGHT Deposit Refund 1237 918.00
1/15/2020 ROGER BRYANT Deposit Refund 1238 1,300.50
1/15/2020 ROBERT PELAN Deposit Refund 12389 265.00
1/15/2020 CM AVIATION Overpayment Refund 1240 61.82
1/15/2020 HELIQUEST AVIATION Overpayment Refund 1241 20.00
1/15/2020 AG SUPPLY COMPANY 1,301.9 Gal Diesel, 480.3 Gall Unleade: 1242 5,312.00
1/15/2020 BECKSTEAD ELECTRIC, INC Install RV Receptacle/Cache Building 1243 757.10
1/15/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION #607 FBO Uniforms, M&O Coveralls, Towels 1244 285.06
1/15/2020 DOOR-TECH, INC Diagnose/Repair TSA Roll Up Door 1245 129.01
1/15/2020 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC Toilet Parts, Parts for 100LL Island 1246 211.32
1/15/2020 FIREFLY Contract, Non-contract IT Services 1247 3,314.33
1/15/2020 HALME BUILDERS, INC. Terminal Security, Terminal Capacity P 1248 118,607.91
1/15/2020 HRA VEBA TRUST 2019 VEBA Contribution - TM, RR, KL 1249 2,766.10
1/15/2020 JERRY'S AUTO SUPPLY Batteries/Terminal Floor Scrubber 1250 335.39
1/15/2020 JOHN DEERE FINAMCIAL Furniture Dollies, Hi-Vis Coats 1251 519.27
1/15/2020 LOCAL TEL COMMUNICATIONS FIE Fiber, Telephones, Cable 1252 714.47
1/15/2020 NORCO ENTERPRISE, INC Oxygen, Nitrogen 1253 200.87
1/15/2020 NORTH CASCADES HEATING & A/C Wall Heating/Cooling Unit - ARFF 5tn 1254 1,623.00
1/15/2020 PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY Reimburse Ex Fl December FBO Salarie 1255 20,509.53
1/15/2020 PUD NO 1 OF DOUGLAS COUNTY December Electricity 1256 4,621.00
1/15/2020 STANS MERRY MART Snow Shovels, Gloves 1257 173.39
1/15/2020 T-O ENGINEERS AIP 40/ EA Services 1258 47,068.68
To the TREASURER OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services herinafter have been received and that
Voucher No. 1233 through No. 13 58 are approved for payment in the amount of S 22_?,436, 12 r.cn 01-15-2020
Airport Director: Airport Auditor: __\ '\'.llf\ I\ ’;'l('l ; I“:I\ \t 0

\
Y]



CHECK REGISTER Page No. 1930
Date issued Claimant Purpose Warrrant Number Amount
1/15/2020 T-0 ENGINEERS Terminal Capacity, Fuel Stn, USFS Heli 1259 66,928.49
1/15/2020 THE FLOOR FACTORY, INC Replace Flooring/ARFF Septic Problem 1260 5,237.90
1/15/2020 THE HOME DEPOT PRO Janitorial Supplies 1261 1,506.01
1/15/2020 USDA,APHIS,WILDLIFE SERVICES ~ 4th Qtr Wildlife Services 1262 1,526.09
1/15/2020 VERIZON WIRELESS* Jet Packs, Hot Spots, Smartphones 1263 402.62
1/15/2020 WAGEWORKS Dec HAS Admin Fee 1264 100.00
1/15/2020 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WEN  Terminal Refuse 1265 342.33
1/15/2020 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WEN - FBO Refuse 1266 171.16
1/15/2020 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WENATTenant Refuse 1267 313.46
To the TREASURER OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services herinafter have been received and that
Voucher No. 1259 thraugh No. 1.25? are approved for payment in the arllnourﬂn of S . I~?5,523-05ﬂ on 01-15-2020
Airport Director: o= (:’{_,’V'\ e Airport Auditor: | 1\ ‘|| I‘.'-r‘;,' ;1.1;.10 rllk 74!11:}\" '| '1 ]'lr‘}



WARRANT REGISTER Page No. 1931

Date issued Claimant Purpose Warrrant Number Amount
1/31/2020 DOUG MAAS Deposit refund 1268 1,071.00
1/31/2020 ERIC LINDEN Deposit refund 1269 235.12
1/31/2020 BECKSTEAD ELECTRIC, INC Retainage release 1271 50.64
1/31/2020 BOBBIE CHATRIAND* Section 125/Childcare 1270 200.00
1/31/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION #607 FBO uniform 1272 19.06
1/31/2020 DEPT OF L&I BOILER,PRESSURE VE Annual water heater inspections 1273 218.07
1/31/2020 EMPIRE AIRLINES Refund erronious deposit 1274 1,468.37
1/31/2020 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPT - U 4th Qtr unemployment 1275 7,007.00
1/31/2020 L N CURTIS & SONS INC AlP 41/ARFF Gear 1277 1,862.02
1/31/2020 OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE December Legal 1278 1,964.50
1/31/2020 PORT OF MOSES LAKE Paint Striper rental 1276 2,250.29
1/31/2020 VISA - RR Clipboards, seat cover, mailchimp 1279 258.12
1/31/2020 VISA - TF Battery cable, lugs, heatshrink/Av Gas 1280 31.09

To the TREASURER OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services herinafter have been received and that
Voucher No. 1268 through No. 1280 are approved for payment in the amount of $ 16,635.28 on 01-31-2020

) 7 0
; . PN Yow v vomn Aol ey sl
Airport Director: = {:Mn.—- Airport Auditor: \ | ]_*\(*'n LLOG 'kff \.“'L“-'gﬂ



Port of Chelan County
Check Register Log
February 25, 2020

Issued Register # Reason Amount First # Last #

1/15/2020  2020-01 Midmonth Payables $ 211,649.66 5001 5038

1/21/2020  2020-02 4Q19 Payroll Taxes $ 76,528.10 5039 5042

1/31/2020  2020-03 Month-end Payables $ 39,210.49 5043 5052
57 warrants for approval February 25, 2020 total: $ 327,388.25

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Port of Chelan County, in the State of Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that Warrants
listed above are approved for payment.

Executive Director

Dir. of Finance & Admin.
Commissioner
Commissioner

Commissioner

-

L.,

ZONSRCAY




Port of Chelan County

Check Register

2020-01

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Port of Chelan County, Chelan County, Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below

are approved for payment.

For approval January 15th, 2020, checks 5001 - 5038 in the amount of $ 211,649.66
Jim Kuntz, Executive Director @“’/4// /&/
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin '!. | t Q1 G0 ‘;”“‘1_ W) '{ 1
1
Date Claimant Purpose Check # Amount

Issued
1/15/2020 Apple Pi Janitorial LLC Janitorial - Pybus Incubator 5001 $ 379.52
1/15/2020 Avidex Release of retainage 5002 § 1,002.20
1/15/2020 B&C Snowplowing Snowplowing - OSBP/CTC/EF 5003 & 7,931.34
1/15/2020 Cascade Farmland Association Reimbursement, per agreement 5004 $ 2,292.39
1/16/2020 Cascade Natural Gas Utilities - EF/CTC/IB9 5005 $ 3,160.55
1/15/2020 Chelan County PUD Utilities - OSBP/CMD/CTC/Chelan 5006 $§ 14,173.70
1/15/2020 City of Cashmere Utilities - Cashmere 5007 % 276.91
1/15/2020 City of Wenatchee Utilities - OSBP 5008 S 925.31
1/15/2020 Coleman Qil Company Fuel 5009 $ 94.72
1/15/2020 Craig Larsen Mileage reimbursement 5010 $ 13.11
1/15/2020 Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply CTC bathroom supplies 5011 % 274.14
1/15/2020 Department of Commerce CERB loans - CTC/Cashmere 5012 $ 124,310.35
1/15/2020 DGS Landscaping Snowplowing - Cashmere 5013 §  3,270.89
1/15/2020 DOH Associates, PS Professional services 5014 § 5,222.70
1/156/2020 Douglas County PUD Utilities - EF 5015 § 1,128.00
1/15/2020 Entiat Valley Chamber of Commerce  4Q19 per agreement 5016 § 1,750.00
1/15/2020 Express Services, Inc. CTC support staff 5017 & 84.04
1/15/2020 Firefly CDRPA website/CDRPA transition 5018 § 11,032.31
1/15/2020 GCA Services Group, Inc. Room set-ups/janitorial; IB3 cleaning 5019 § 4,926.00
1/15/2020 GeoTest Ground penetrating radar - Lineage 5020 § 2,187.50
1/15/2020 GWATA 4Q19 per agreement 5021 § 7,500.00
1/16/2020 Home Depot Credit Services Maintenance supplies 5022 $ 37.33
1/15/2020 Johnson Controls HVAC maintenance 5023 % 552.25
1/15/2020 Kelley Imaging Systems Copier service contract - CTC 5024 § 312.15
1/15/2020 Keyhole Security, Inc. Fire alarm maintenance - 1B4/IB9 5025 § 3,145.07
1/15/2020 Landline Surveyors Title report review 5026 $ 718.75
1/15/2020 LocalTel Communications Telephone Installation - EF 5027 % 524,77
1/15/2020 Lowe's Maintenance supplies 5028 S 74.98



Ist?:: d Claimant Purpose N?:::::r Amount

1/15/2020 Manson Chamber of Commerce 4Q19 per agreement 5029 $§ 2,500.00
1/15/2020 Office Depot Office supplies 5030 $ 46.82
1/15/2020 Pacific Security Guard & patrol services - CTC 5031 $ 400.49
1/15/2020 Sound Energy, LLC Professional services 5032 $§ 2,587.50
1/15/2020 Stacie de Mestre. Mileage reimbursement 5033 $ 31.32
1/15/2020 Valley Tractor & Equipment, Inc. Maintenance supplies 5034 $ 52.25
1/15/2020 Waste Management of Wenatchee Garbage - CMD/EF/OSBP/CTC 5035 $§ 1,925.30
1/15/2020 Wenatchee World Business World advertising 5036 $ 795.00
1/15/2020 WSU Chelan County Extension Tree management plan - OSBP/CTC 5037 $ 3,510.00
1/15/2020 WV TREAD 4Q19 per agreement 5038 $ 2,500.00



Port of Chelan County
Check Register
2020-02

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Port of Chelan County, Chelan County, Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below
are approved for payment.

For approval January 21st, 2020, checks 5039 - 5042 in the amount of $ 76,528.10

Jim Kuntz, Executive Director Vs W f%h/\

VT
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin | wr‘_ﬂ{ (M1, ML
' ' y

Date

Claimant Purpose Check # Amount
Issued
1/21/2020 Department of Labor & Industries 4Q19 - Payroll Taxes 5038 $ 1,557.77
1/21/2020 Employment Security Department 4Q19 - Payroll Taxes - PFML 5040 $ 497.37
1/21/2020 State of Washington Dept. of Revenue 4Q19 - Leasehold Taxes 5041 § 71,018.99
1/21/2020 State of Washington Dept. of Revenue 2019 Annual B&O Taxes - VCC 5042 $  3,453.97



Port of Chelan County
Check Register
2020-03

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Port of Chelan County, Chelan County, Washington, do
hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below
are approved for payment.

For approval January 31st, 2020, checks 5043 - 5052 in the amount of $ 39,210.49
Jim Kuntz, Executive Director M // V\/\
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin  /, l W0 . \ it '_'1"“1
i \
Cate Claimant Purpose Check # Amount

Issued
1/31/2020 Aspect Consulting, LLC Lineage environmental analysis 5043 $ 5,306.69
1/31/2020 Cashmere Chamber of Commerce 4Q19, per agreement 5044 $ 2,500.00
1/31/2020 GCI Communications Release of security deposit 5045 § 688.00
1/31/2020 M. Vail Company OSBP IB3 Reroof 5046 § 9,186.82
1/31/2020 Ogden Murphy Wallace, PLLC Legal services 5047 $ 10,934.00
1/31/2020 RH2 Engineering, Inc. Professional services 5048 $ 508.53
1/31/2020 State Auditor's Office WA State Audit - CTC 5049 § 8,128.12
1/31/2020 VISA Business Expenses 5050 $  1,395.11
1/31/2020 WageWorks, Inc. HC FSA Admin Fee - December '19 5051 § 100.00
1/31/2020 Wenatchee World Legal Advertising - HVAC Bids 5062 §$ 463.22



PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04
RESOLUTION TO VOID WARRANTS NO. 22978 & 23016

Whereas Warrant No. 22978 in the amount of $834.91 payable to NCW Media, Inc.
on Register Page No. 4015 was created and signed on December 19, 2019.

Whereas Warrant No. 23016 in the amount of $382.22 payable to J.C. Baldwin on
Register Page No. 4019 was created and signed on December 31, 2019.

Whereas Warrants No. 22978 & No. 23016 were later deemed to be not received by
their respective payee.

Now, therefore be in resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of
Chelan County, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, that Warrants No.
22978 & 23016 be declared VOID.

Dated this 25" day of February, 2020,

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY

J.C. Baldwin, Commissioner

Donn Etherington, Commissioner

Rory Turner, Commissioner

Copy sent to Chelan County Treasurer's office

Date: By:

Port of Chelan County Resolution No. 2020-04 Voiding Warrants 22978 & 23016 Page 1 of 1



Port of Douglas County

Check Register Log

January 2020
Issued Register # Reason Amount First # Last #
1/15/2020 2020-01 Mid-month Payables $ 118,349.63 5001 5018
1/30/2020 VOIDED CHECKS $ - 5019 5024
1/30/2020  2020-02 Month-end Payables $ 5,469.07 5025 5030
24 warrants for approval February 25, 2020 total: $ 123,818.70

We, the undersigned Commissioners of Port of Douglas County, in the State of Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise or services hereinafter have been received and that Warrants

listed above are approved for payment.

Executive Director M .

\ ¢ o = \ i )I e
Dir. of Finance & Admin. - / hj(“ﬂ(ijﬁ); 1L LAQY

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner




Port of Douglas County
Check Register
2020-01
We, the undersigned Port of Douglas County, in the State of Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise
or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below are approved for payment.

For approval January 15, 2020, checks 5001 - 5018 in the amount of $ 118,349.63

Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer Z"M M /

Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin }/"\W(Mﬂ\ O& ;%(QJMQ

I::::: d Claimant Purpose N?Jl:lc;:r Amount |
01/15/20 Alpine Aire Heating & Cooling Inc. CWICC HVAC Repair 5001 579.42
01/15/20 B & C Snowplowing Snowplow PABP 5002 5,001.55
01/15/20 Chelan Douglas RPA CWICC Land Lease 5003 491.00
01/15/20 Davis Arneil Law Firm Legal 5004 9,120.00
11/15/20 Dept of Commerce CERB Loan-PABP Phase |l 5005 77,672.86
J1/15/20 Dept of Labor & Industries Q4-2019 Workers Comp 5006 309.72
01/15/20 Dept of Revenue Q4-2019 Leasehold Tax 5007 12,392.87
01/15/20 Douglas County PUD Utilities 5008 5,400.00
01/15/20 Employment Security Dept Q4-2019 Paid Fam&Med Leave 5009 166.56
01/15/20 Express Services Receptionist Wages 5010 326.55 .
01/15/20 Fire Protection Specialists LLC CWICC Fire Alarm Inspection 5011 750.00
01/15/20 Hames, Anderson, Whitlow, . . . Legal - Giga Watt 5012 600.00
01/15/20 Harvest Valley Pest Control 3306 Bldg Pest Control 5013 84.40
01/15/20 Keyhole Security CWICC Bldg-Install Alarm Locks 5014 1,601.25
01/15/20 Maul Foster Alongi Services - L Parks 5015 1,083.75
01/15/20 Ron Cridlebaugh Reimb Travel/Logo Wear 5016 197.02
01/15/20 Xerox Corp Copier Lease/Meter Charge 5017 822.68
01/15/20 DC Cemetery District #2 Waterville Airport Maintenance 5018 1,750.00

TOTAL 118,349.63



Port of Douglas County
Check Register
2020-02

We, the undersigned Port of Douglas County, in the State of Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise
or services hereinafter have been received and that checks listed below are approved for payment.

For approval January 30, 2020, checks 5019 - 5030 in the amount of $ 5,469.07
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer 4 M
77 7
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin \W&nl O{l ,%(QJJ(}QG))
, 1. A
Date ; Check
Issued Claimant Purpose Number Amount
01/31/20 VOIDED CHECKS VOID 5019-5024 -
Harvest Valley Pest Control Pest Maintenance 5025 139.58
Office of Minority & Women Business Membership 5026 100.00
Parson's Photography Business Portrait Session 5027 498.64
RH2 Engineering PABP Mapping Lot 3 5028 1,388.05
W Alan Loebsack Oct/Nov 2019 Travel Reimb 5029 92.80
wsu Q4-2019 SBDC ILA 5030 3,250.00
TOTAL 5,469.07




Chelan Douglas Regional

Port Authority

Memo

To: Board of Directors
From: %im Kuntz

cc: None

Date: February 20, 2020

Re: Final Airport Rules & Regulations

Please find enclosed the final Airport Rules & Regulations for your
review. | have also enclosed Jennifer Sands’ email which describes
the changes made from the previous version reviewed by the Board
of Directors.



Jim Kuntz
T e ——

h— R e e
From: Jim Kuntz
Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2020 11:51 AM
To: Jennifer K. Sands; Monica Lough; Trent Moyers
Cc: Peter A. Fraley; Cami Harris
Subject: RE: Redline of Rules and Regulations

lennifer,
These changes look fine to me. Can you please send me the final so we can put in the Port Commission packets. Thanks.

Jim Kuntz

Chief Executive Officer

One Campbell Parkway Suite A, East Wenatchee, WA 98802
& 509.884.4700 | Cell 509.336.5595 | www.cdrpa.org

CHELAN DOUGLAS

G Regional Port

AUTHORITY

From: Jennifer K. Sands <jsands@omwlaw.com>

Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 5:54 PV

To: Jim Kuntz <Jim@cdrpa.org>; Monica Lough <Monica@cdrpa.org>; Trent Moyers <trent@cdrpa.org>
Cc: Peter A. Fraley <pfraley@omwlaw.com>

Subject: Redline of Rules and Regulations

Dear All:

Attached please find a redline showing the proposed revisions to the Rules and Regulations. While these revisions
initially stemmed from the addition of a review process for the Airport Director’s exercise of discretion, the passage of
time and status/current implementation of the CDRPA led to further changes, summarized below.

First, the preamble/purpose has been significantly shortened since it originally spoke in terms of a pre-January adoption
and laid out the functional consolidation and cessation of the joint venture. As we are post-January, the sequence
outline did not serve the same function. However, If you feel it best to keep that narrative in some form, then the
thought is to add that the CDRPA will becorne owner of the Airport property upon FAA approval of sponsor change and
use that as a benchmark. This shortening also resulted in removal of the 2003 JOA as a specific definition in Section

11. Reference to the JOA remains in the definition of Board. Please note that these rules and regulations do not
overtly address a return to management under the 2003 JOA. In the unlikely event that the CDRPA no longer operated
the Airport or the FAA did not approve the sponsor change, these rules would require revisiting.

Section 1.5.2 resulted from a discussion with Trent regarding the ability to pass on FAA or TSA fines or penalties imposed
on the Airport that result from an Airport user’s actions.

Section 1.6.2 clarifies an intent that a variance or waiver from the rules and regulations is contemplated only in certain
circumstances such as public/property safety.



Section 1.7 adds the process whereby a party may seek review of the Airport Director decision. It does not provide for a
hearing, but sets out the timing and mechanics of engaging the CDRPA CEO to review. It also addresses the
scope/standard of that review (limited to failure to follow legal process, a decision that was arbitrary, capricious or an
abuse of discretion, or that the Airport Director had no authority or jurisdiction to make the decision.

If a party fails to follow the process and timing set out in Section 1.7, the Airport Director decision is final.

Section 2.8 of the draft clarifies the references to personal property impoundment versus aircraft (since only aircraft are
governed by the specific RCW provision referred to in 2.8.3).

Lastly, the revised draft adds definitions for the CDRPA CEO and adds/relocates the definitional reference to the CDRPA
Board.

Nothing in these proposed revisions changes the previously discussed adoption process. All four “entities” (POCC,
PODC, Governing Board of Pangborn and the CDRPA) would adopt them by resolution,

I look forward to your comments after you have had a chance to review,

Thank you,

lennifer Sands | Attor ney

Ogden Murphy Wallace P.L.L.C.

One Fifth Street, Suite 200 Wenatchee, WA 98801
phone: 509.662.1954 | fax: 509.663.1553
Isands@omwlaw.com

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION - This cormnmunication constitutes an electronic communication within the meaning of the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C, Section
2510, and its disclosure is strictly Umited to the recipient intended by the sender. It may contain infarmation that is proprietary, privileged, and/or confidential. If you are not
the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distdbution, or use of any of the contents s STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and destroy the original transmission and all copies,



PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD FOR THE
PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY TO ADOPT
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE PANGBORN MEMORIAL
AIRPORT

Whereas the Pangborn Memorial Airport (“PMA”) has historically been owned jointly
by the Port of Chelan County and the Port of Douglas County (the “Ports”), and managed by
the Ports as the PMA Governing Board under the terms of a 2003 Joint Operating
Agreement (the “JOA”);

Whereas the Governing Board is authorized under the JOA and RCW 14.08 to
adopt rules and regulations for the operation and management of PMA;

Whereas the Governing Board desires to continue to promote and maintain a safe
aeronautical environment for the users of PMA, and the aircraft, vehicles and personal
property located at PMA, and has determined that the users and operations of PMA will be
better served by the adoption of revised and updated rules and regulations relating to
conduct at PMA, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” (the “Rules and Regulations”);

Whereas the Ports formed the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority pursuant to
an Interlocal Agreement dated June 19, 2019 (the “CDRPA”) to assume responsibility for
the ownership, operation and management of PMA;

Whereas the transfer of ownership, operation and management of PMA has been
submitted to the Federal Aviation Administration for final approval, and upon such approval,
the CDRPA will own, operate and manage PMA;

Whereas the Rules and Regulations contemplate the CDRPA’s ownership,
operation and management of PMA, and the CDRPA has similarly determined that the
adoption of the Rules and Regulations will better serve the users of PMA and PMA
operations;

Now, Therefore, the Governing Board and the Board of Directors for the CDRPA
hereby resolve that the Rules and Regulations, in the form submitted as of this date as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated by this reference, are hereby approved and adopted.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

[Signatures on following page.]

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution Approving Airport Rules & Regulations Page 1 of 3



GOVERNING BOARD FOR PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT:

J.C. Baldwin, Commissioner Jim Huffman, Commissioner
Donn Etherington, Commissioner Alan Loebsack, Commissioner
Rory Turner, Commissioner Mark M. Spurgeon, Commissioner
DATED: DATED:

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution Approving Airport Rules & Regulations Page 2 of 3



CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY:

J.C. Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director
Donn Etherington, Director Alan Loebsack, Director
Rory Turner, Director Mark M. Spurgeon, Director
DATED: DATED:

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution Approving Airport Rules & Regulations Page 3 of 3



0

CHELAN DOUGLAS

Regional Port

AUTHORITY

\HERE WILL YoU GO Topay>

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT

RULES AND REGULATIONS
PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT

Adopted:




1. INTRODUCTION

Il
1.2.
1.3,
1.4.
1.5
1.6.
1.7,

2.1.
2.2
2.3;
2.4.
23
2.6.
25
2.8.
2.9,
2.10.

2.11;
2.12.

3.1.
32
3.3.
3.4.
3.5.
3.6.
3.7.
3.8.

4.1.
4.2.
4.3.
44,
4.3.
4.6.
4.7.
4.8.

GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS
Abandoned, Derelict, or Lost Propcrty

. PERSONAL CONDUCT ........

AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS. SRR——

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Purpose....
Authonty

Appllcabillty and Condltlonal Usc of Pangborn Mcmonal Alrport

Administration ..
Enforcement...

Variance or Walver for Safeguard of Publ ic or Property

Review ..

ke i

Access and Use. ..

Animals...

Compllance w:th Laws

Construction Activities ..

Flying Clubs... i
Licenses, Pcrrmts Certlﬁcatlons and Ratmgs

Lien for Nonpayment of Charges ........................... B
Regidential 1Ises PRORIDIEA ..o
Smoking and Smokeless TODATED: ;u.susi oo st smisimsss i

Special Events... =
Through-The Fcnce Acth1tles

General Prohibitions ..
Commercial Photography and Vldeo
Alcohol and Controlled Substances ..

Pedestrian Access
Bigna el A A VSITISBINIIG. s s S
R b
J—
.14

Solicitation ... i
Weapons, Exploswes and Incendlarles
Speech and Assembly. ..

ENATE ERER B
DOCDO\DOO*JC\O\O\O\:

12
13

Generally... ST

Accidents or Inmdents
Aircraft Operations and Ground Movement

Balloon Operations ...

Based ATl v v e i e i o e i i e s
N
..18
.19

Deicing ...
Limits on Aeronautlcal Actlvrtles
Mamtenance

..16
- 7
SRCTRRIIN &

18

. | |
wosikl
RO

.12

16



10.

11.

4.9. ParkmgandStorage
—
SRR
o)

w20

4.10. Rotorcraft Operations....

4.11. Self-Servicing ...

4.12. Ultralight and Gilder Opcratlons
4.13. Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Operatmns

B,  WBHELEIAME cncminaccmmasssmnmomsivmsiomitani o et oAt

. GROUND VEHICLES AND GROUND TRANSPORTATION..

5.1.  Generally....

5.2. Parking... -

33 Commermal Vehlcles

5.4. Conduct... 3
5.5. Ground Vehlcle Operatlons in Restncted Areas

TERMINAL RULES AND REGULATIONS

19

20

6.1, RESEIVEA...c.eeiieie ettt et e et e et eeetee et e sessseesasasessssess sesesanserns

FUELING: voormsrmsssemsssassns SOUU———

T i T
Ti2: Fucl Flowage FRes i mssimmmsmsmsessmessssomsnss i stossianmussotsimmmensanaes

7.3.  Training...
7.4. Fuel Storage Facmtles
7.5. Inspections ...

7.6.  Commercial Se]f Serv:ce Fue[mg R eSS T T AT i A aanpasien s pmsinss

7.7.  Self-Fueling....

.21
SO | |
soissicild
RS
o |

.24

29

SECURITY AND SAFETY ....
8.1.  Generally....

8.2.  Passenger and Baggage Screemng

8.3. Restricted Areas..

8.4, TAMPEIING..c..uiiieeiieiictctnreettt sttt ets ettt st eseasbasssn s s s ssersassssnsssssnanas

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT ERTP—

Gl
ceeeenn30
.30

31

5

0.1.  Fire Prevention... .
9.2.  Sanitation and Solld Waste Managcmcnt
9.3.  Hazardous Materials Management ...

9.4.  Spill Prevention and ReSPONSE.........c..cocveoiemeuimiree et ee e e eeees s eeseeans
935. -Aitctall Cleaning and PAININE ..cmimsmsinisimebmmsiiisssiisssissioss

RATES AND CHARGES........

R
I

33
34

10.1.  Generally.... T
10.2. Payment of Rents, Fccs and Chargcs
10.3. Adoption and Administration ..

DEFINITIONS SIPEPREE—— - A

S T
s
K o

34

30



1.1.
N

1 B

L2
1.2.1.

L.

1.3
1531

1.3.2.

RULES AND REGULATIONS
PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT

INTRODUCTION

Purpose

The Pangborn Memorial Airport Governing Board hereby promulgates and adopts the
following Rules and Regulations to restrict or prevent any activity or action which would
interfere with the safe, orderly, and efficient use of the Airport by its passengers, operators,
tenants, and users.

It is not the intent of these Rules and Regulations to excuse any Entity from performing
any obligation it may have under any specific agreement the Entity has with the Board,
whether the agreement is in existence on the date of the adopting of these Rules and
Regulations or entered into at any time thereafter.

. The Board recognizes the jurisdiction of the federal government, delegated to the Federal

Aviation Administration (“FAA™), concerning the licensing and regulation of pilots, Air
Carriers and aircraft; and concerning the navigable airspace. Nothing herein is intended to
assert jurisdiction over matters under the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal government,
and the provisions hereof shall be interpreted consistent with this purpose.

Authority

These Airport Rules and Regulations (“Rules and Regulations™) are promulgated under the
authority of the Revised Code of Washington Section 14.08.120, which grants the power
to regulate the use of the Airport. All leases, licenses, permits and other agreements
authorizing the use of Airport property and facilities shall be subject to compliance with
the Rules and Regulations.

The invalidation of any specific rule or regulation shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of the Rules and Regulations.

Applicability and Conditional Use of Pangborn Memorial Airport

The privilege of using the Airport or any portion thereof, is specifically conditioned on the
assumption of full responsibility and risk by the user thereof. Nothing herein affects any
defense or immunity available to the Airport, the Board, the Port of Chelan County and the
Port of Douglas County, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, and each of their
commissioners and agents, officers and directors, and the successors to such entities and
parties.

Any permission granted, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, to any person
or persons to enter or use the Airport or any portion thereof (including aircraft operations,
crew members, and passengers, spectators, sightseers, private and commercial vehicles,
officers and employees or lessee and other persons occupying space on the Airport, lessees,
sublessees, and permittees, and all other indicated) is conditioned upon compliance with



13,3,

1.4.
1.4.1.

1.4.2.

1.5.

1.5:1.,

152

these Rules and Regulations; and entry upon or into the Airport by a person shall be deemed
to constitute an agreement to comply with said Rules and Regulations. Further, all users
of the Airport acknowledge that the primary purpose of the Airport is to facilitate and
support aviation and aeronautical operations. The possession and use of the Airport, or any
part thereof, is expressly conditioned upon there being no conflict between a use and the
operations of the Airport. In the event of conflict, as determined by the Airport Director,
in his or her sole discretion, the matter shall be resolved in favor of Airport operations. For
example, conflicts may arise due to the application of safety and security provisions, and
the laws and regulations adopted or administered by the Federal Aviation Administration.
Each user hereby acknowledges the primary purpose of the Airport, and waives any and
all claims arising from or associated with a conflict between the user’s use, and the Airport
operations.

No person shall discriminate against any person or class of persons in any manner
prohibited by applicable Laws, including without limitation, by reason of race, creed, color,
national origin, sex, age, or disability, in providing any products or services, in the
implementation of these Rules and Regulations, or in the use of any of the Airport’s area,
buildings, facilities or improvements provided for the public.

Administration

The Airport Director, assisted by staff, has primary responsibility for the interpretation and
application of the Rules and Regulations and is authorized to issue citations, directives and
interpretive guidance in conformity with the Rules and Regulations. The foregoing is not
intended to limit the review process set out in Section 1.7 or the Board’s ability to restrict,
revoke or otherwise modify the delegation to the Airport Director to interpret and apply
these Rules and Regulations.

The Transportation Security Administration (“TSA™) has primary responsibility for the
screening of passengers and property at the Airport, and for approving the Airport Security
Program pursuant to 49 CF.R. Part 1542. The TSA is not responsible for the
implementation and enforcement of the Rules and Regulations.

Enforcement

The Airport Director may remove or evict from the Airport any person who knowingly,
willfully or recklessly violates any rule or regulation prescribed herein, or applicable Laws
(including without limitation, any rule or regulation in effect by the federal government,
the State of Washington, Douglas County, or any other governing entity). The Airport
Director may also deny use of the Airport and its facilities to any such Entity if it is
determined that such denial is in the public interest.

Should a fine or penalty be levied against the Airport, the Port of Chelan County, the Port
of Douglas County, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, (or any agent, officer,
director or Commissioner thereof), either individually or collectively, as a result of an
Entity’s use failure to comply with these rules and regulations and applicable Laws, such
Entity shall have sole responsibility for the payment of the fine or penalty.



1.6.
1.6.1.

Laki
1.7.1

1.7.2

1.73

1.7.4

1.7.5

Variance or Waiver for Safeguard of Public or Property

The Airport Director may take such actions (including those that may vary from the
provisions of these Rules and Regulations) from time to time when certain circumstances,
such as the safety of the public or the protection of Airport property, may require.

Review

Any party aggrieved by a decision hereunder involving the exercise of discretion by the
Airport Director may request review of such decision by the Chief Executive Officer (the
“Appeal”). An Appeal must be made in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the
date the Airport Director’s decision is communicated to the party, must be personally
delivered or mailed via certified mail return receipt requested to the Chief Executive
Officer, and set forth a mailing address for the party. The Appeal must set forth in detail:

a) the decision made by the Airport Director for which review is sought;
b) how the Airport Director’s decision was erroneous:

c) the harm to the party submitting the Appeal; and

d) the modification to the decision requested by the party.

The Chief Executive Officer shall respond in writing to the Appeal within thirty (30)
calendar days of receipt by either: (a) making a written determination with respect to the
subject matter of the Appeal, or (b) requesting in writing additional information from the
party submitting the Appeal. A party shall provide all requested additional information
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the Chief Executive Officer’s request.
The Chief Executive Officer shall make a written determination with respect to the Appeal
within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the additional information. In either case,
the Chief Executive Officer’s written determination shall be final and conclusive.

Standard of Review. A decision of the Airport Director shall be modified by the Chief
Executive Officer upon a showing by the party that:

a) the Airport Director failed to follow a procedure set out in the Laws, including these
Rules and Regulations;

b) the Airport Director’s decision was arbitrary, capricious or an abuse of discretion; or
¢) the Airport Director’s decision was outside his or her authority or jurisdiction.

A party not complying with the provisions of this Section 1.7 will be deemed to waive his
or her rights to appeal and the decision of the Airport Director shall be final and conclusive.

The provisions of this Section 1.7 apply solely to review of a decision of the Airport
Director made under these Rules and Regulations. Nothing in this Section 1.7 is intended
to amend, modify or limit the rights and remedies of the parties to a written lease or other



written agreement regarding the use of the Airport, or limit the application of Douglas
County Code Chapter 8.08, or any other Laws governing conduct at the Airport.

2. GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1.
Z.1.1.

2.1.4.

2.2
2.2.1.

222,

2.3.
23,1,

232

233

2.34.

2.4.
24.1.

Abandoned, Derelict, or Lost Property

No person may abandon personal property, ground vehicles, or aircraft on the Airport.
Personal property found in public areas of the Airport shall be turned over to Airport
Administration.

Articles unclaimed by the owner within 30 days may be legally disposed of upon
authorization from the Airport Director.

Access and Use

Access to or entry upon the Airport shall be made only at locations designated by the
Airport Director.

Any person accessing or using the Airport shall be fully and completely responsible for
their actions and all actions of any person to whom they provide or facilitate access to or
use of the Airport, whether directly or indirectly, express or implied.

Animals

Domestic pets and animals are not permitted on the Airport, unless controlled and
restrained by a leash, harness, restraining strap, portable kennel, or other appropriate
shipping container. Leashes, harnesses and straps shall not exceed six (6) feet.

It shall be the responsibility of the owner or handler to exercise control over the animal at
all times. Owners or handlers are responsible for the immediate removal and disposal of
animal waste. No person shall permit, either willfully or through failure to exercise due
care or control, any animal to urinate or defecate upon the sidewalks or the Airport, or upon
the floor or carpet of the Terminal or any other building used in common by the public.

No person, except those authorized by the Airport Director, shall hunt, pursue, trap, catch,
intentionally injure, or kill any bird or animal on the Airport.

Feeding or otherwise encouraging the congregation of birds or animals on the Airport is
prohibited.

Compliance with Laws

All persons or entities occupying or using, engaging in an Aeronautical Activity on, or
developing Airport land or improvements thereon, shall comply, at the person’s or Entity’s
expense, with all applicable Laws, including, without limitation, those of the federal, state,
and local government and any other agency having jurisdiction over the Airport, the
businesses operating at the Airport, and the activities occurring at the Airport, including



24.2.

2.5.
2.5.1

2.3.2.

233

the United States Department of Transportation, the United States Department of
Homeland Security, the TSA, the FAA, the State of Washington, Douglas County, , and
these Rules and Regulations; as all may be in effect and amended from time to time.

The following documents (“Supplemental Documents™) contain policies and procedures
issued by the Airport Director or his or her designated representative which are in addition
to these Rules and Regulations. These documents are incorporated into these Rules and
Regulations by reference.

1. Airport Certification Manual

2. Airport Emergency Plan

3. Airport Security Program

4. Airfield Operations Area (AOA) Access Rules and Regulations
5. Aviation Policies

6. Minimum Standards for Commercial Aeronautical Activities;
7. Airport Parking Rules

8. SIDA and Drivers Training Program.

In the event of any discrepancy between these Rules and Regulations and any Supplemental
Documents, leases, or agreements, the specific terms of the Supplemental Documents,
leases, or agreements will prevail. Distribution, disclosure and availability of security-
sensitive information contained in the Airport Security Program and other documents may
be restricted to those persons with an operational need-to-know.

Construction Activities

Any construction or alteration taking place on the Airport shall be performed in compliance
with applicable federal, state and local laws.

No construction requiring a building, earth-moving or similar permit shall take place on
the Airport without approved construction plans; proper permits; and written approval by
the Airport Director, including designation of a construction start date and construction
schedule.

Any construction or other commercial or non-commercial activities on the Airport that are
determined by the FAA to constitute an obstruction or hazard to air navigation or that
would, according to FAA standards, constitute an attractant to wildlife are prohibited
without prior written permission of the Airport Director.



2.54.

2.6.

2.6.1.

2,62,

2.63.

2.64.

2.6.5.

2.6.6.

2.6.7.

Any construction or alteration on the Airport shall be designed so as to conform, as
applicable, to the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) and/or the
Air Carrier Access Act (49 U.S.C. § 41705) and implementing regulations and guidelines.

Flying Clubs

Each member of a Flying Club must be a bona fide owner of an equal share of the club’s
aircraft or an equal stockholder in the Flying Club.

A Flying Club may not derive greater revenues from the use of its aircraft than the amount
necessary for the actual operation, Maintenance and replacement of its aircraft.

Each Flying Club shall file and keep current with the Board the following:

a. A current list of members, along with the investment (ownership) share held by each
member.

b. Copies of club aircraft registration, or alternate evidence that club aircraft ownership is
vested in the name of the Flying Club or all of its members.

c. A copy of the prior year’s tax return, or alternate evidence of the nonprofit or not-for-
profit status of the Flying Club.

d. Copies of bylaws, articles of incorporation, operating rules, membership Agreements,
and the location and address of club’s registered office.

e. A roster of officers and directors, including addresses and phone numbers.

Flying Club aircraft shall not be operated by other than members and shall not be used by
anyone for commercial operations, including flight instruction for compensation, except as
consistent with subsection 2.6.7.3 below or as otherwise authorized under the FAA Airport
Compliance Manual (FAA Order 5190.6B) as amended if amended.

A Flying Club operating at the Airport shall have the right to Self-Fuel aircraft belonging
to the Flying Club in accordance with Section 7.7 of these Rules and Regulations.

A Flying Club operating at the Airport shall have the right to self-service Flying Club
aircraft in accordance with Section 4.11 of these Rules and Regulations. Any qualified
mechanic who is a registered member and part owner of the aircraft owned and operated
by a Flying Club may perform Maintenance work on aircraft owned by the club. The
Flying Club may not become obligated to pay for such Maintenance work except that such
mechanics may be compensated by credit against payment of dues or flight time.

A Flying Club operating at the Airport shall not be required to meet the Airport Minimum
Standards, provided each of the following conditions is met:



2.6.8.

2.7.
2.0.1.

2,72,

275

2.7.4.

2,

2.6.7.1. The Flying Club does not lease or sell any goods or services whatsoever to any

person or firm other than a member of such club at the Airport, except that the
Flying Club may sell or exchange its capital equipment.

2.6.7.2. The Flying Club specifically does not offer or conduct retail Fuel sales, charter, air

taxi or aircraft rental operations.

2.6.7.3. The Flying Club does not permit its aircraft to be used for flight instruction for any

person, including members of the club when such person pays or becomes obligated
to pay for such instruction, except when instruction is given by a lessee based on
the Airport who provides flight training and the person receiving the training is a
member of the Flying Club. Flight instructors who are also club members may not
receive payment for instruction except that they may be compensated by credit
against payment of dues or flight time.

Insurance

2.6.8.1. Insurance shall be provided and paid for by the Flying Club in the amounts and

with such additional insureds as specified in the most current insurance
requirements determined by the Airport Director.

2.6.8.2. A certificate of insurance will be furnished to the Airport, and ten days advance

written notice of any change to the policy shall be given to the Airport Director.

Licenses, Permits, Certifications and Ratings

Aircraft operators shall obtain and comply with all necessary licenses, permits,
certifications, or ratings required for the conduct of operator’s activities at the Airport as
required by the Airport Director or any duly authorized agency prior to engaging in any
activity at the Airport. Upon request, operators shall provide copies of such licenses,
permits, certifications, or ratings to the Airport Director within 5 business days.

Commercial activity of any kind requires the express written permission of the Airport
Director through a specifically authorized contract, lease, sublease, operating agreement,
license, permit, or written temporary permission and the payment of any required fees.

A commercial activity permit may not be assigned or transferred and shall be limited solely
to the approved activity.

To receive a permit, the applicant must demonstrate proof of adequate insurance.

The Airport Director may revoke a permit to do business on the Airport upon evidence that
the permittee has violated any provision of the Rules and Regulations, ordinances
governing the Airport, or applicable Laws.



2.8.
28.1.

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

2.9.
2:9.1,

2.10.
2.10.1.

2.10.2.

2.11.
2.11.1.

Lien for Nonpayment of Charges

To enforce the payment of any overdue charges, including but not limited to rent payments,
charge for repairs, improvements, storage, or care of any personal property on the Airport
(collectively the “charges”), by the Board or its agents in connection with the operation of
the Airport, the Board shall have a lien on such personal property, including aircraft, which
shall be enforceable as provided herein.

To enforce the payment of any such charge, the Airport Director may retain possession of
such personal property until all amounts owed have been paid in full. The Airport Director
may secure any personal property, including aircraft, by the use of chains, ropes, locks and
any other reasonable means so that the personal property or aircraft cannot be removed
from the Airport following nonpayment of charges owed (the “impounded property™).

The Airport Director shall have full authority to sell impounded property and apply the
proceeds to the unpaid charges. With regard to aircraft, the Airport Director shall provide
notice, and have all the remedies regarding the impounded aircrafi, as set forth in RCW
14.08.122, the provisions of which are incorporated into these rules and regulations by this
reference. Specifically, the Airport Director shall have the ability to publicly sell the
impounded aircraft and apply the proceeds to the unpaid charges.

Residential Uses Prohibited

No building or facility on the Airport shall be used for residential use. The foregoing
prohibition shall not apply to resident ARFF quarters, flight crew quarters, pilot resting
facilities, and similar facilities designed and used for temporary occupancy, and further
shall not apply to any parcels on the Airport used for residential purposes at the time of
adoption of the Rules and Regulations and approved for such use by the FAA.

Smoking and Smokeless Tobacco

There shall be no smoking, use of smokeless tobacco, cigars, pipes, electronic cigarettes or
any product that produces smoke, odors or vapors of any type at the Airport except in
designated areas and no such activity shall occur on the passenger loading area, the tie-
down and parking areas, and runways and taxiways at the Airport.

No person shall spit or expectorate, as a result of any form of smokeless tobacco such as
snuff or chewing tobacco, into or upon any trash receptacles, planters, water or drinking
fountains, sinks, floors, sidewalks, roads, parking lots or other areas inside or adjacent to
the Terminal.

Special Events

Special events require written coordination, regulation, and authorization of the Airport
Director prior to the public disclosure or advertisement of the event. The authorization
shall be in the form of a letter of authorization from the Airport Director to the special
event sponsor in which the sponsor is recognized as involved in the planning process for a
specific type of event. Certain activities shall require an executed lease, operating

10



2.12.

agreement, license or permit with the Board. Additional permits from federal, state or local
agencies may also be required.

Through-The Fence Activities

2.12.1. “Through the Fence” activities are prohibited at the Airport. No access to the public landing

area by aircraft or for other acronautical activities from land adjacent to, but not part of,
the Airport is permitted.

3. PERSONAL CONDUCT

3.1.
3.1.1.

3.1.2.

k1 B

3.1.8.

3.1.9.

General Prohibitions

No person shall obstruct, impair or interfere with the safe, orderly and efficient use of the
Airport by any other person, vehicle or aircraft.

No person shall commit any disorderly, obscene, or indecent act on the Airport.

No person shall destroy (or cause to be destroyed), injure, damage, deface, or disturb, in
any way, property of any nature located on the Airport. Any person causing such damage
shall reimburse to the Board the full amount of repair and replacement of property
necessary to repair the damage.

4. No Entity shall use, keep, or permit to be used or kept, any foul or noxious gas or substance

at the Airport, or permit the Airport to be occupied or used in an objectionable or offensive
manner, as determined by the Airport Director, whether by reason of noise, odors, or
vibrations, or interfere in any way with other occupants or those conducting business at the
Airport.

- No person shall make, possess, use, offer for sale, pass, or deliver any forged or

impermissibly altered pass, permit, identification card, sign, or other authorization
purporting to be issued by or on behalf of the Board or the Airport Director.

- No person shall engage in, conduct, aid in, or abet any form of gambling on the Airport.

. No person shall operate a sound amplification system on the Airport without the written

permission of the Airport Director. The foregoing restriction does not apply to the use of
the public announcement system in the Terminal or the use of individual gate
announcement systems by airlines to facilitate the boarding of passengers on commercial
service aircraft, subject to amplification limits established by the Airport Director.

No person shall throw, deposit, place or leave any rubbish of any nature on or within the
Airport, except in designated receptacles.

No person shall use or otherwise conduct him or herself upon any portion of the Airport in
any manner contrary to the posted or otherwise visually-indicated directions applicable to
that area.

11



3.1.10.

3411,

3.2
3:2.1.

322

323

33,
331

332

333,

3.4.
3.4.1.

34.2.

3.4.3.

No person may wash clothes, shower, bathe or change clothes or remain undressed in or at
any sink, washroom or restroom that is not designated as a showering or bathing facility.
No person shall spit, urinate or defecate on any part of the Airport other than in a urinal or
toilet intended for that purpose.

Overnight camping, sleeping or lodging on the Airport is prohibited. Use of any facility
on the Airport for sleeping or other purposes in lieu of a residence, hotel, motel, or other
accommodation is prohibited unless authorized by the Airport Director.

Commercial Photography and Video

No person shall take still photographs, make audio recordings, or record video at the
Airport for commercial purposes without written permission from and in the manner
authorized by the Airport, except that members of the television and print news media may
cover the news in authorized areas of the Airport.

No person shall take still photographs or record video of access control readers, security
measures or security doors within or leading into or out of a restricted area.

No person shall take still photographs, make audio recordings, or record video of TSA
officers or law enforcement officers in such manner as to interfere with the officer’s official
duties or that may compromise current or future Airport security or law enforcement
functions, as determined by the Airport Director.

Alcohol and Controlled Substances

Alcoholic beverages may only be consumed in designated areas, in accordance with
applicable legal requirements, and licenses.

The Board and the Airport Director reserve the right to exclude or expel any person who,
in the judgement of a law enforcement officer, is intoxicated or under the influence of
alcoholic beverages or drugs

No person shall consume, transfer, display, sell or grow marijuana products and/or
marijuana accessories on the Airport.

Pedestrian Access

No person may travel on the Airport other than on roads, sidewalks or other marked rights-
of-way provided for such purpose.

No person shall prevent or restrict any other person’s passage to, from and within the
Airport, except for authorized conduct of federal, state and local law enforcement officers,
TSA officers, and Board employees.

No person shall loiter on the Airport or in any building on the Airport for a period of time
longer than reasonably necessary to transact such business as the person may have on the
Airport, except that nothing will be deemed to prohibit any person from remaining in the

1% .



3.44.

3.4.5.

3.4.6.

3.4.7.

3.3
3.5.1.

3534

3.3.3.

3.54.

3.6.
3.6.1.

Terminal in the event of a delayed departure or for the purpose of meeting arriving or
departing passengers. No person shall be permitted to remain overnight in the Terminal,
except as authorized by the Airport Director.

Access to the Security Identification Display Area (“SIDA™), Sterile Area and Airport
Operations Area (“AOA™) must conform to the requirements of Section 8 of these Rules
and Regulations. Any person who, without authority, enters the SIDA, Sterile Area or
AOA shall, in addition to other penalties, be considered to be trespassing.

Pedestrians are permitted in the Aircraft Movement Area and Safety Areas only if
necessary for Airport operations and only if authorized by the Airport Director or escorted
by an authorized person.

Pedestrians in the Aircraft Movement Area or Safety Areas must possess an operable two-
way radio capable of transmitting and receiving on the Common Traffic Advisory
Frequency (CTAF) and comply with the operating procedures in the EAT Airport Security
and Vehicle Operator Training Manual and other information provided by the Airport
Director or his/her designee.

Any Person working in the SIDA must wear high visibility clothing, including a safety vest
with reflective striping or other American National Standards Institute Class II high
visibility garment, throughout the period working in the SIDA.

Signage/Advertisements

The Airport Director may post signs, including electronic signs, and authorize aural
announcements on the Airport to put users thereof on notice of matters contained herein
and of emergency orders promulgated hereunder.

All persons shall observe and obey posted signs governing activities on the Airport and the
direction of law enforcement officers, TSA officers, and Airport employees assigned to the
Airport.

No person shall post or distribute printed or written matter or pictures in the Terminal
without the prior written permission of the Airport Director.

No person shall install a sign on or within the Terminal or on the exterior of a building or
facility on the Airport without prior written approval of the Airport Director.

Solicitation

No person shall solicit for the immediate receipt of funds on the Airport except as permitted
under Section 3.9.

13



3.7:
2.1

.72

3.7.3.

3.74.

3.7,

3.7.6.

30T

3.8.
3.8.1.

Weapons, Explosives and Incendiaries

Possession and use of any weapons, explosive or incendiaries on the Airport shall be in
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulatory measures, including those
of the TSA regarding the transport of weapons on aircraft.

No person other than a duly authorized federal, state or local law enforcement officer, a
federal air marshal, airport personnel and USDA-APHIS personnel engaged in wildlife
hazard management activities or a pilot participating in the Federal Flight Deck Officer
program or successor program shall possess a firearm, rifle, spring or air gun in the Sterile
Area or SIDA.

No airline passenger, except an authorized local, state or federal law enforcement officer,
shall enter the passenger screening area with a weapon or other item prohibited by the TSA.
Duly authorized law enforcement officers may detain any person violating this provision
for questioning, confiscate the weapon or prohibited item, allow the person to voluntarily
withdraw from screening, or allow the person to check or ship the weapon or prohibited
item. These actions may be in addition to any civil penalties imposed by TSA for the same
conduct.

No person other than persons noted in subsection 3.7.2 above shall fire or discharge any
firearm, rifle, spring or air gun of any description or shoot any tipped arrows on the Airport
or onto the Airport. The foregoing restrictions on discharging firearms do not apply to
individuals engaged in wildlife management authorized by a wildlife hazard management
plan or explicitly by the Airport Director.

No person shall discharge any laser on the Airport or onto the Airport directed at a law
enforcement officer, TSA officer, oraircraft. The intent of this prohibition is to supplement
the requirements of federal law, 18 U.S.C. § 39A, and FAA regulation, and to provide a
mechanism for the Board to penalize the improper discharge of lasers. This provision shall
be interpreted consistent with this intent.

No person shall possess on the Airport any explosive device or weapon, or any hoax device.
The foregoing restriction on explosives does not apply to individuals engaged in wildlife
management authorized by a wildlife hazard management plan or explicitly by the Airport
Director and further does not apply to explosive devices used in airport construction or
manufacturing, maintaining or operating aircraft. For purposes of the Rules and
Regulations, a hoax device shall include any object that would cause a person to reasonably
believe that the object is or contains a destructive, incendiary or explosive device.

The requirements of this subsection are subject to the adoption of more restrictive
requirements as may be imposed in a TSA-approved Airport Security Program, in which
event the more restrictive requirements shall apply.

Speech and Assembly.

Any person or organization desiring to engage in non-commercial speech on Airport
premises, which speech would be protected under the First Amendment to the United States

14



3.82.

3.8.3.

Constitution, shall be protected in such speech, provided that it will not result in
interference with: the constitutional rights of others or the harassment of others, the
security, operations and functioning of the Airport (including the rights of concessionaires
and tenants at the Airport) and provided further such speech is conducted pursuant to the
procedures as set forth herein.

Any person or organization desiring to distribute literature, seek contributions or otherwise
communicate with members of the public at the Airport, in the exercise of their First
Amendment rights, shall first obtain a written permit from the Airport Director. For
purposes of obtaining such permit there shall be submitted to the Executive Director a
written request on an application form setting forth the following:

1. The full name, mailing address (other than a post office box number) and telephone
number of the person or organization sponsoring, promoting or conducting the proposed
activities;

2. The full name, mailing address (other than a post office box number) and telephone
number of the individual person or persons who will have supervision of and responsibility
for the proposed activities;

3. A description of the proposed activities indicating the type of communication to be
involved, including whether solicitations of donations will be conducted;

4. The dates and hours on and during which the activities are proposed to be carried out,
and the expected duration of the proposed activities;

5. The number of persons to be engaged in said activities at the Airport at any given time;

6. A certification that the proposed communications are not obscene, defamatory, or
otherwise prohibited by law;

7. If donations are to be solicited, a statement signed by the applicant that the applicant
represents and will be soliciting donations for the sole benefit of the following, and that the
funds will be used for a non-commercial charitable organization as follows:

a. a religion or religious group;
b. a political organization; or
c. other non-profit group, social justice group or organization.

Any organization or person desiring to obtain a permit for any activities referred to herein
shall sign an indemnification and hold harmless agreement, indemnifying the Airport, each
Port District, and their commissioners, officers, agents, and employees against any claim
that might be made against any of the foregoing by reason of activities conducted by the
permittee or its agents at the Airport. This agreement must be included with the application.

15



3.8.4.

3.8.5.

3.8.6.

3.8.7.

The permit granting or amending such request shall be issued with reasonable promptness
following receipt of the application by the Airport Director, or the applicant shall be
furnished with a written statement indicating why the issuance of the permit will be delayed
or why a permit will be denied. In no event shall the granting or denial of the permit exceed
fifteen (15) business days from the date the completed application and all relevant
information is received by the Airport Director.

Permits will be granted on a “first come, first served” basis. Permits are not transferable.

If one individual or entity has a demonstrated need for only a part of the area described in
the permit, others may be granted the right to the use of unused space. Under no
circumstances will the permit area include: any secured area, area behind or within 30 feet
of a screening checkpoint, restroom facilities or storage areas (or within 10 feet thereof),
driveways or parking areas, any area under a lease or concession agreement, within 10 feet
of any person loading or unloading luggage, at any ticket or baggage check in counter or
baggage claim area unless expressly designated.

When there are requests for space at the same time by more persons or organizations than
the available areas will reasonably accommodate, the Airport Director shall maintain a
waiting list and upon availability, notify the next individual or organization of its turn to
utilize the area provided their permit remains valid.

4. AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS

4.1.
=N N

4.1.3.

Generally

The operation of aircraft on the Airport shall be conducted by licensed pilots in conformity
with applicable FAA regulations at Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, including
without limitation Part 91, Part 121 and Part 135; TSA regulations; and the Rules and
Regulations,

. All aircraft operating at the Airport shall display on board the aircraft a valid airworthiness

certificate as required and issued by the FAA or appropriate foreign government, and
further shall display on the exterior of the aircraft a valid registration number issued by the
FAA or appropriate foreign government. All persons operating aircraft on the Airport shall
possess an appropriate certificate or license issued by the FAA or appropriate foreign
government. Upon request of the FAA, National Transportation Security Board (“NTSB”),
federal, state or local law enforcement officers, or TSA, the aircraft operator shall produce
an operator’s license, an airman certificate, a medical certificate and photo identification.

No person may operate aircraft at the Airport in a reckless or negligent manner; in disregard
of the rights and safety of others; without due caution and circumspection; or at a speed or
in a manner which endangers, or is likely to endanger, persons or property. No person shall
operate aircraft constructed, equipped or loaded in such a manner as to endanger, or to be
likely to endanger, persons or property.

The Airport Director shall prohibit aircraft operations upon determining that continued
operations would be unsafe in the conditions present at the time, including without

16



4.2.
4.2.1.

42.2.

423.

4.24.

4.3.
43.1.

4.3.2.
4,33,
4.34.

4.3.5.

4.3.6.

4.3.7.

limitation aircraft Incidents and Accidents and certain airfield surface conditions. The
Airport Director may, with FAA approval, limit or prohibit aircraft operations at the
Airport in connection with a special event. The Airport Director shall issue a NOTAM, to
close a portion of or the entire Airport or to terminate or restrict aircraft activity on the
Airport.

Accidents or Incidents

The operator of any aircraft involved in an Accident on the Airport, regardless of whether
it results in personal injury or property damage, must immediately notify Airport
Administration, and make a prompt and complete report concerning the same, in addition
to any and all other notifications and reports required to be made to other federal, state and
local authorities.

An aircraft involved in an Accident on the Airport shall not be removed from the scene of
the Accident until authorized by the Airport Director who shall receive removal
authorization from the FA A Regional Operations Center or NTSB, when applicable, and/or
the Federal Bureau of Investigation if criminal activity is implicated, except as may be
necessary for exigent safety reasons.

Once authorization for removal has been issued, the aircraft owner, pilot or authorized
insurance company shall make arrangements to have the aircraft moved immediately. If
removal is not completed within a reasonable amount of time, the Airport Director may
have the aircraft removed at the owner’s sole risk and expense.

The operator of any aircraft that is involved in an incident or is otherwise disabled within
the Movement Area must immediately notify Airport Administration.

Aircraft Operations and Ground Movement

Operating an aircraft in a careless, negligent, or reckless manner; in disregard of the rights
and safety of others; without due caution and care; or at a speed or in a manner which
endangers or is likely to endanger persons or property of any kind, is prohibited.

Aircraft operators shall obey all pavement markings, signage, and lighted signals.
Taxiing aircraft shall yield the right-of-way to any emergency vehicle.

Positioning, starting, or taxiing of aircraft shall be done in a safe manner and so as not to
cause jet blast and prop wash that may result in injury to persons or damage to property.

Aircraft should be adequately secured before the engines on the aircraft are started.

Aircraft shall not be started or taxied within any structure on the Airport, except as may be
required in aircraft manufacturing.

Passengers and cargo shall be enplaned/deplaned only in areas designated by sign or by
Exhibit to these rules and regulations.

17



4.3.8.

4.4,
44.1.

4.5,
4.5.1.

4.5.2.

4.5.3.

4.6.
4.6.1.

4.7.
4.7.1.

4.72.

4.73.

Run-up of jet, turboprop or piston engines shall be performed only in the areas designated
by sign or by Exhibit to these rules and regulations.

Balloon Operations
[Reserved]

Based Aircraft

Based Aircraft must be registered with the Airport Director as required by RCW 47.68.250.
Registration information shall include aircraft make, model, registration number and
maximum gross landing weight; contact information for the owner; and insurance
documentation.

The Board reserves the right to require different levels of insurance coverage based on an
Entity’s individual risks or exposure, as determined by the Airport.

Based Aircraft must have a tie-down or hangar agreement with the Airport, an FBO or a
SASO.

Deicing
Aircraft deicing (the removal of snow and/or ice with chemical substances) shall only be
accomplished in full compliance with the Airport Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

(“SWPPP”) or Airport Stormwater Management Plan, as appropriate, and at location(s)
specified and permitted by the Airport Director.

Limits on Aeronautical Activities

The following types of aircraft and other aerial devices may not be operated to, from or at
the Airport without the Airport’s prior written authorization:

a. Ultralight aircraft.
b. Model aircraft and unmanned aerial vehicles or systems.
c. Kites, tethered or non-tethered balloons, rockets and similar aerial devices.

Use of any portion of the Airport as a designated drop zone for parachute jumping or
skydiving shall be prohibited without the prior written approval of the Airport Director and
further shall require a lease or permit authorizing use of the designated portion of the
Airport for a drop zone.

The Board or the Airport Director may seek review by the FAA upon receipt of an
application to conduct one of the foregoing aeronautical activities or any other
Aeronautical Activity not being conducted at the Airport at the time of application. If the
Board or the Airport Director grants approval to conduct an Aeronautical Activity, the
approval shall be in the form of a directive authorizing the applicant and other similarly-

18



4.8.
4.8.1.

4.8.2.

4.9.
4.9.1.

4.9.2.

4.93.

4.94.

4.95.

4.9.6.

4.10.

situated entities the right to conduct the Aeronautical Activity and prescribing specific
conditions on use of the Airport for the Aeronautical Activity. The authorized Aeronautical
Activity shall be conducted in conformity with such directive, all applicable requirements
contained in FAA regulations, and any other conditions as may be imposed.

Maintenance

With the exception of preventative maintenance, maintenance and repair of General
Aviation aircraft shall be permitted only in designated areas within an FBO'’s or SASO’s
leased premises. Preventative Maintenance may be performed on aircraft located on tie-
downs and in hangars. Preventive maintenance shall have the meaning set forth in 14
C.F.R. Part 43 as amended from time to time. As of the date of this document, the definition
provides that, “preventive maintenance” is limited to the following work, provided it does
not involve complex assembly operations:(1) Removal, installation, and repair of landing
gear tires.(2) Replacing elastic shock absorber cords on landing gear.(3) Servicing landing
gear shock struts by adding oil, air, or both.(4) Servicing landing gear wheel bearings, such
as cleaning and greasing.(5) Replacing defective safety wiring or cotter keys.(6)
Lubrication not requiring disassembly other than removal of nonstructural items such as
cover plates, cowlings, and fairings.

Minor Maintenance of Air Carrier aircraft (as defined by 14 C.F.R. Part 43) may be
performed at the gate positions in the Terminal area. For all other work, the aircraft must
be moved to an area designated for such purpose.

Parking and Storage

Aircraft shall be parked only in those areas designated for such purpose by the Airport,
shall not block taxi lanes or obstruct access to hangars or parked aircraft, and shall not be
left unattended at any fueling facility.

Aircraft operators shall ensure that aircraft are properly secured when parked, using
appropriate methods such as tie-down ropes or chain and/or chocking.

A parking fee as established by the Board will be charged for overnight parking of transient
aircraft.

No aircraft shall be left unattended on the Airport unless it is in a hangar or adequately
locked and secured.

Non-airworthy aircraft shall not be permitted within the tie-down or Ramp areas, except in
connection with aircraft manufacturing, repair or refurbishment.

Abandoned Aircraft are prohibited on the Airport. The Airport Director may remove
Abandoned Aircraft at the sole risk and expense of the aircraft owner.

Rotorecraft Operations

4.10.1. [Reserved]

19



4.11.
4.11.1.

4.11.2.

4.11.3.

4.114.

4.11.5.

4.11.6.

4.12.
4.12.1.

4.13.
4.13.1.

4.14.
4.14.1.

Self-Servicing

All persons have the right to service an aircraft that the person owns or aircraft that the
person has under their exclusive use and operational control pursuant to a long-term lease
or similar agreement manifesting that the aircraft is within the person’s care, custody and
control. The right to self-service includes the right to tie down, adjust, repair, refuel, clean,
and otherwise service an aircraft

Each person self-servicing an aircraft shall have the requisite training and/or certification
as may be required by the Rules and Regulations and FAA regulations. Licensed pilots are
permitted to perform preventive Maintenance on the Airport in accordance with 14 C.F.R.
Part 43.

Self-Fueling is subject to the requirements of subsection 7.7 hereof.

Aircraft managers, co-ops or hangar associations are not recognized to be the owner or
lessee of an aircraft, and each such Entity therefore is not permitted to self-service. F lying
Clubs and companies engaged in fractional aircraft ownership operations pursuant to 14
C.F.R. Part 91 that are the owner or lessee of an aircraft are permitted to self-service, in
accordance with federal law. Aircraft manufacturers are permitted to self-service aircraft
prior to delivery and while the aircraft is under the manufacturer’s care, custody and
control. Airlines are permitted to self-service aircraft that may be owned or leased by an
Air Carrier with a separate legal identity from the airline and providing scheduled
passenger service at the Airport in accordance with a contract or agreement with the airline.
Contractors to the United States Forest Service are permitted to service aircraft engaged in
wild-land firefighting.

Self-servicing shall be performed only by the aircraft owner, operator or lessee or
employees of the owner, operator or lessee. The Airport Director may require proof of
employment, such as a copy of the employee’s W-2 Statement.

No person shall be required to self-service. Airport users may purchase products and
services from the Board or a duly authorized commercial aeronautical service provider.

Ultralight and Glider Operations
[Reserved]

Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Operations
[Reserved]

Weight Limits

No aircraft having a maximum gross takeoff weight, as certified by the aircraft
manufacturer and including passengers, cargo, Fuel, and equipment, in excess of the
weight-bearing capacity of the airfield pavements, as identified in the Airport/Facility

20



Directory, shall land, take off, or taxi at the Airport without prior permission of the Airport
Director:

4.14.2. Any person constructing pavements on the Airport intended to accommodate aircraft shall

build and maintain the pavements to support aircraft at the weights identified in the
Airport/Facility Directory or such other pavement strength as may be approved by the
Airport Director.

5. GROUND VEHICLES AND GROUND TRANSPORTATION

5.1.
) )

5.1.3:

5.2
3.2:1.

522,

§23.

52.4.

Generally

All ground vehicle drivers on the Airport shall comply fully with applicable state, Board
and local motor vehicle Laws, the Rules and Regulations, and instructions issued by the
Airport Director, staff or law enforcement officers.

. No person shall operate a vehicle on the Airport in a reckless or careless manner or in a

manner that would endanger his or her person or property; would endanger the normal
operation of aircraft; or would endanger safety of another's person or property.

No person shall operate any motor vehicle on the Airport faster than the prescribed speed
limit.

Parking

No person shall park or leave standing any vehicle, whether occupied or not, on the Airport
except within areas specifically designated by the Airport for parking or loading.

The Airport Director shall cause signs to be placed and maintained that designate all
general and reserved loading zones, reserved parking areas and public parking areas,
including, but not limited to, those designated for exclusive use of car rental agencies and
companies operating at or from the Airport. No parking areas shall be designated in areas
on and along drives and roadways or in such other areas on Airport property as deemed
necessary by the Airport Director for the safe, efficient and convenient operation of the
Airport. All Airport tenant employees must park in their assigned areas.

The Airport Director may remove or cause to be removed any Abandoned Vehicle; any
vehicle that is illegally parked or disabled; any vehicle that impedes Airport operations or
the orderly flow of traffic; or any vehicle that creates a potential security threat. Any
vehicle parked in areas of the public parking lot assigned for exclusive use of car rental
agencies or companies may be removed or caused to be removed by order of the Airport
Director.

The owner or operator of any such vehicle removed under this section shall be liable for
payment of towing and storage and other applicable charges and charges for removal and
storage of the vehicle shall be a lien upon the automobile. Any such vehicle shall be
released to the owner or operator thereof only upon proper identification of the person
making claim and payment of towing and storage and other applicable charges. Neither

21



53.
2l

3.3

333,

5.3.4.

3.35.

the Board nor any of its agents shall be liable for damage to any vehicle resulting from the
act of removal.

Commercial Vehicles

Any party operating a Commercial Vehicle at the Airport must have authorization for such
activity under terms of a lease, contract or permit with the Airport. Such operations are
limited as set forth in these Rules and Regulations and any applicable agreement between
the operator of a Commercial Vehicle and the Airport, which are both subject to change
from time to time.

The permit application for Commercial Vehicle operations shall be submitted on a form
supplied by the Airport. The applicant will pay an application fee, and a permit fee for each
Commercial Vehicle, based on a fee schedule established by the Board from time to time.
The application shall contain, at a minimum, identity and contact for the applicant, a
certification and evidence of insurance, registration of the Commercial Vehicle and
applicable operating licenses required by Law to undertake the Commercial Vehicle
operation, together with such other eligibility requirements as may be established by the
Board from time to time. Provided thata Commercial Vehicle operator has complied with
these Rules and Regulations, and applicable Laws, the permit shall renew automatically
upon payment of the annual fee.

[fa permit is issued to the applicant, the applicant shall prominently display a decal sticker,
hang tag, card or other identifying mark issued by the Board or the Airport Director within
the Commercial Vehicle evidencing that the Commercial Vehicle is authorized to operate
at the Airport.

The Airport Director reserves the right to designate dedicated waiting, pick up and drop off
areas for Commercial Vehicles. In general, however, all vehicles (including Courtesy
Vehicles) shall abide by the rule that the front curb of the Terminal is reserved for the
temporary:

a. loading and unloading private vehicles operated by the general public for
passengers at the Terminal;

b. unloading Small Commercial Vehicles for passenger drop off at the Terminal;

c. loading Commercial Vehicles, but only in the designated area at the south end near
the baggage claim area of the Airport; and

d. loading and unloading charter/tour buses and shuttles, but only in the designated
area at the south end near the baggage claim area of the Terminal.

Large Commercial Vehicles are prohibited from loading persons along the front curb of
the Terminal, unless otherwise exempted as follows:

22



5.3:6.

3.3.7.

3.3.8.

3.3.9.

5.3.10.

3511

5.3.12.

5.3.13.

a. During periods of inclement weather (heavy rain, snow, or sleet), Commercial
Vehicles may load and unload passengers under the awning located along the front curb
of the Terminal.

b. Commercial Vehicles may load and unload passengers with disabilities along the front
curb of the Terminal.

No Commercial Vehicle shall wait, block, park within, load or unload persons or luggage,
or otherwise interfere with the operation of the Commercial Vehicle through-lane
unless temporarily stopped to give way to pedestrians or vehicles.

All vehicles within designated Commercial Vehicle waiting areas must be attended at all
times. No exceptions will be permitted. Unattended vehicles will be ticketed and/or towed.

The Airport Director may publish and update from time to time, a Vehicle Use Diagram,
which depicts the specific loading, unloading, waiting areas and designated through-lanes
assigned to Commercial Vehicles based on the type of transportation service provided (..,
shuttle, Courtesy Vehicles, TNCs, taxi-cab, and tour/charter buses). This diagram shall be
available upon request.

The Airport Director reserves the right to direct Commercial Vehicles to other specific
loading, unloading and waiting areas on a case by case basis to avoid congestion, ensure
proper traffic flow and reasons of Airport security.

Upon entry onto the Airport without a passenger or after discharging a passenger at the
Airport, each Commercial Vehicle shall proceed at once by the most direct route to the
proper waiting area, or stand, or immediately leave the Airport. No Commercial Vehicle
operator and associate vehicle may loiter on the curb. This includes waiting for delayed
passengers.

All Commercial Vehicle Drivers are to have on their person a valid driver’s license with
all the appropriate endorsements for the operation/type of vehicle being operated. A
copy of current insurance and registration is to be in the vehicle at all times. This
insurance must meet all state and local requirements.

Commercial Vehicle Drivers shall maintain appropriate attire and conduct while on the
Airport property, consistent with any other standards imposed on a party operating a
business at the Airport. Commercial Vehicle Drivers shall not congregate with other
Drivers or loiter in any parts of the Terminal, sidewalks or parking lots and shall smoke in
designated areas only. Littering is prohibited.

No Commercial Vehicle operator may refuse or neglect to transport to any location any
passenger requesting service on the basis of race, sex, national origin, religion, age,
disability, short haul, or location of destination, so long as the person(s) are orderly and
willing and able to pay the prescribed fare.

23



54.
54.1.

5.4.2.

54.3.

5.44.

5.45.

3.5,
.%:1;

5.5.2.

Conduct

Vehicles must be in good repair with operational lights and windshield wipers, and free
of jagged or rusted dents, material body damage, cracked windows, excessive exhaust
and noise. The Airport Director reserves the right to inspect vehicles for compliance with
this policy.

No person shall clean or make any repairs to motor vehicles anywhere on Airport
property other than in designated shop areas, except minor repairs necessary to remove
such vehicle(s) from the Airport property.

The Airport Director shall have the authority to tow or otherwise move vehicles which
are parked by their owners or operators on the Airport property who are in violation of
the Rules and Regulations without liability for damage which may result in the course of
such towing or moving. This includes towing for any security related reason.

The Driver of any vehicle involved in any Accident on Airport property resulting in injury
to any person or damage to any vehicle or property shall immediately stop such vehicle
at the scene of the Accident and report such to the Airport Director. The operator of
such vehicle, within a reasonable time after the occurrence, shall make other reports as
may be required by and in accordance with the Rules and Regulations.

Vehicle operators shall obey directives given by Airport officials. Such directives
may deviate from this policy to accommodate special events, unforeseen
circumstances, or other needs. Any of the Rules and regulations affecting this
Policy may be immediately altered should Airport Administration receive security
guidance from the Transportation Security Administration.

Ground Vehicle Operations in Restricted Areas

No vehicle may be operated in the Aircraft Movement Areas or Safety Areas without
express authority of the Airport Director.

Persons operating a vehicle in the Aircraft Movement Areas or Safety Areas must possess
an operable two-way radio capable of transmitting and receiving on the Common Traffic
Advisory Frequency (CTAF) and comply with the operating procedures in the EAT Airport
Security and Vehicle Operator Training Manual and other information provided by the
Airport Director or his/her designee.

6. TERMINAL RULES AND REGULATIONS

6.1.

Reserved

24



7. FUELING

7.1,
1.1.1.

Tl2.

7.1.3.

7.1.4.

11,8,

7.1.6.

7.1.8.

7.1.10.

F:L11:

General

All Fuel Handling and dispensing on the Airport shall be performed in compliance with
applicable federal, state and local regulations concerning the storage, handling, and
dispensing of aviation Fuel at the Airport.

Only the Board shall be permitted to engage in the sale of aviation Fuel and lubricants to
the public at large at the Airport.

No aircraft shall be fueled or defueled while inside any building, hangar, or enclosed space,
unless approved in writing by the Airport Director prior to the fueling operations. If
approved, ARFF shall be notified and be on stand-by during fueling or defueling.

No aircraft shall be fueled or defueled if an electrical storm is in progress within 5 miles of
the Airport. Fueling operations shall not resume until 15 minutes after the last observed
lightning.

Fueling and defueling operations shall be conducted with adequate fire extinguishers
immediately available. All extinguishers shall be inspected and certified, as required by
Law, and all Fuelers shall be properly trained on the use of fire extinguishers.

Fuelers shall provide pumps for dispensing aviation Fuels from a fixed location or
dispensing truck. These pumps shall be equipped with metering devices that meet all safety
standards of the aviation fueling industry and the FAA. The metering devices must be
inspected, checked, and certified by appropriate state and local agencies.

. All Fuel dispensing equipment, hoses, funnels or apparatus used in fueling or defueling

shall be maintained in good condition and be properly grounded, in accordance with FAA
and National Fire Protection Association guidelines, and in compliance with the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act.

All gasoline powered fueling vehicles, hoses, funnels, and appurtenances used in fueling
and defueling operations on the Airport must be equipped with appropriate safety devices
to minimize the hazard of fire or explosion.

. Motor vehicles and other equipment shall be fueled on the Airport only from approved

locations and dispensing devices.

No Fuel vehicle designed for, or that is employed in, the transportation of Fuel, shall be
operated on a taxiway or runway at any time without express prior permission from the
Airport Director.

Only those fueling vehicles that are actively engaged in fueling aircraft are permitted to
park on the Terminal Ramp. The number of fueling vehicles permitted to park in
designated areas on the Terminal Ramp shall be determined and assigned by Airport
Director.

25



7.2.
2.1

g 6% £
.31,

H:3.2.

7.4.
74.1.

7.4.2.

7.43.

7.4.4.

7.4.5.

7.4.6.

Fuel Flowage Fees

The Board shall establish a fuel flowage fee to be applied to all aviation fuels delivered to
aircraft on Airport property.

Training

All Fuelers and agents handling aviation Fuels at the Airport must be properly trained as
required by FAA regulations, currently at 14 C.F.R. § 139.321. Fuelers must provide to
the Airport Director a written confirmation once every 12 consecutive calendar months
that the training required by FAA regulations, currently at 14 C.F.R. § 139.321(e), has been
completed.

Line service Fuelers must receive initial on-the-job training and recurrent training every 24
consecutive calendar months. Line service Fuel safety training may be provided by a
supervisor who has completed an FAA authorized supervisory Fuel safety training course
or an authorized Fuel safety training program. Training for employees may also be
completed through the use of an approved line service Fuel safety course.

Fuel Storage Facilities

The storage of aviation Fuel is permitted only in the area(s) of the Airport that are
designated by the Airport Director. No other method of Fuel storage shall be permitted at
the Airport. The Airport Director reserves the right to designate one or more Airport Fuel
Farm locations and require that all Fuel storage facilities installed after such designation
are located in the Airport Fuel Farm.

All Fuel storage tanks installed or constructed on the Airport shall be above ground level,
except as may be approved in writing by the Airport Director upon demonstration that an
underground Fuel storage tank is consistent with applicable Laws, and also with National
Fire Protection Association guidelines.

Construction or alteration of Fuel storage facilities may be undertaken only if approved in
writing by the Airport Director and shall meet all safety standards of the aviation fueling
industry and the FAA.

All Fuel storage facilities and mobile fueling vehicles shall be identified by the type of Fuel
and Fuel octane stored when applicable, in addition to any other marking or placards
required by applicable Laws and fitted with the nozzle designed and intended for the Fuel
stored in and dispensed from the Fuel storage facility or mobile fueling vehicle.

A Fueler authorized to receive, store, and dispense aviation Fuels shall have adequate
procedures for sampling and testing of Fuels. All tests and test schedules shall be
performed in accordance with applicable regulations and industry standards. Fuelers are
solely responsible for ensuring the quality of the Fuel.

At least fourteen days before beginning use of a new Fuel storage facility, Fueler shall
provide to the Airport Director a written copy of a plan addressing proper fueling

26



7.4.7.

13,
73k

7.6.
1.6.1.

7.6.2.

7.6.3.

7.6.4.

procedures, training of personnel, quality assurance and quality control procedures, record
keeping, marking and labeling of fueling equipment and the Fuel storage facility, and
emergency response procedures. Fueler shall also provide to the Airport Director a Spill
Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plan (“SPCC”) that meets all applicable
regulatory requirements for Fuel storage and fueling activities, in the event that the SPCC
Plan for the Airport does not cover Fueler’s intended Fuel storage facility and operations.
Fueler is responsible for determining whether the Airport’s SPCC Plan covers Fueler’s
intended Fuel storage facility and operations. An updated plan and SPCC Plan, if required,
must be submitted at least fifteen (15) days prior to any planned change in operation. Fuel
may not be stored in or dispensed from any Fuel storage facility unless and until the Airport
Director has approved the plan and any SPCC Plan.

Fuelers shall be responsible for and oversee the safe transfer of all Fuel from Fuel suppliers
to a Fueler’s storage facility, including by ensuring that the fueling vehicle driver remains
with the vehicle at all times when Fuel is being transferred.

Inspections

The Airport Director and other appropriate governmental agencies may inspect a Fueler’s
Fuel storage facilities, dispensing equipment, and vehicles from time to time to ensure
compliance with all safety standards. A record of those inspections shall be retained by
Fueler for at least twenty-four months. When discrepancies are noted, Fueler shall
immediately take corrective action to remedy the situation. The failure to take corrective
action to remedy the situation may result in the termination of any and all privileges to
operate at the Airport.

Commercial Self-Service Fueling

The Airport shall be permitted to install and maintain a Fuel storage and dispensing facility
for Commercial Self-Service Fueling at a location or locations designated by the Airport.

No Entity, other than the Airport, shall provide Commercial Self-Service Fueling without
also providing attended commercial fueling at the Airport.

Commercial Self-Service Fueling shall be subject to the requirements herein for fueling,
including payment of Fuel flowage fees, training, fueling operations, Fuel storage,
inspection, Fuel spill response, and further shall be subject to applicable requirements of
the Airport Minimum Standards.

Commercial Self-Service Fueling shall be subject to the following additional requirements:

7.6.4.1. The facility shall be constructed on concrete rigid pavement or flexible asphalt

surface and include above ground double wall tank(s), fueling terminal, metering
system, emergency shut-off, lighting and protective enclosures, using pipe bollards
or other suitable protection.

7.6.4.2. The facility shall include a control device that prevents unauthorized Fuel

dispensing.

27



Teds
7.7.1.

7.7.2.

¥k

1.74.

1.7.5.

178,

delots

7.6.4.3. The facility shall be available for use 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

7.6.4.4. The responsible Entity shall provide ladders to service aircraft, a properly serviced

fire extinguisher, meeting National Fire Protection Association standards; easily
recognizable markings to indicate the type of Fuel; and placard instructions on the
use of the facility, emergency telephone numbers and emergency procedures.

7.6.4.5. The responsible Entity shall inspect the facility daily and have trained personnel

during normal hours of operation, as required by the Airport Minimum Standards,
available to answer questions, provide other assistance, and respond to Fuel spills
from the facility.

Self-Fueling

No person shall engage in Self-Fueling unless and until a Self-Fueling permit authorizing
such activity has been obtained from the Airport Director.

To obtain a Self-Fueling permit, an applicant must provide evidence of ownership or lease
for every aircraft for which Self-Fueling privileges are requested.

To obtain a Self-Fueling permit, an applicant must provide evidence that it is a tenant at
the Airport pursuant to a lease or sub-lease and, in the event the applicant is a sub-lessee,
must further provide evidence that the lessee expressly has authorized the applicant to Self-
Fuel on the leasehold.

The Self-Fueling Permittee shall procure and deliver to the Airport, with the application
for a Self-Fueling permit, a current, original Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the
Board showing insurance coverage for the duration of the Self-Fueling permit in an amount
established by the Airport, which is insurance must be separate from premises and liability
insurance and specific to aircraft fueling. All insurance policies shall name the Board as
an additional insured, and, shall not be subject to cancellation or change except after thirty
days prior written notice of such cancellation or change to the Airport Director by the
carrier. In all instances, by submitting the application, the Self-Fueling Permittee agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold the Airport, each Port District and its commissioners, agents
and employees harmless from any and all claims resulting from the Self-Fueling Permittees
operations on the Airport.

The term of a Self-Fueling permit shall be no longer than one year and shall be subject to
renewal.

Permittee may only fuel aircraft identified on the Self-Fueling permit. No other aircraft
may be fueled by Permittee.

Permittee shall ensure that only persons employed by Permittee are involved in dispensing
Fuel and that all employees handling Fuel are trained in accordance with subsection 7.3
above. Permittee shall submit to the Airport Director evidence of training in safety
procedures received by each person who will conduct aviation Fuel dispensing operations

28



7.7.8.
719,

1.710,

dutdls

LL12

S A

7.7.14.

7.7.15.

and shall provide to the Airport Director documentation verifying all required certifications
and required recurrent training before Self-Fueling activities may take place.

Permittee shall dispense aviation Fuel only in areas designated by the Airport.

Permittee shall equip each mobile fueling vehicle with an appropriately sized fire
extinguisher.

Fueling vehicles shall not be permitted to park inside any structure on the Airport unless
approved in writing by the Airport Director and ARFF is notified of the parking
arrangement. Additional conditions on the parking of fueling vehicles may be prescribed
in the Self-Fueling permit.

Each Permittee shall meet with ARFF personnel to discuss fueling fire safety and
associated safety procedures before the first time Fuel is dispensed by Permittee.

The Airport Director shall have the right to conduct fire safety inspections upon reasonable
notice to Permittee any time during the term of a Self-Fueling permit.

Permittee may terminate the Self-Fueling permit upon written notice to the Airport Director
and the Airport Director may terminate the permit on such terms and conditions as are
stated in the permit.

Permittee shall agree to assume all liability in connection with Fuel storage, handling and
dispensing, and to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Airport, each Port District, and
their commissioners, agents and employees on terms prescribed by the Self-Fueling permit.

A Self-Fueling permit is not assignable or transferable. Permittee shall not enter into any
agreement to transfer any of Permittee’s privileges under the Self-Fueling permit whereby
other persons share in the privileges or services authorized by the Self-Fueling permit.

8. SECURITY AND SAFETY

3.1
8.1.1.

8.1.2.

Generally

All persons on the Airport shall comply with the operating procedures in the EAT Airport
Security and Vehicle Operator Training Manual and follow security-related Laws and
directives, including TSA requirements, while on the Airport.

All persons on the Airport shall follow the direction of designated airport security
personnel, on-duty federal, state and local law enforcement officers and TSA officers.

. The Airport Director may issue directives and orders to implement the Airport Security

Program. The Airport Security Program is considered sensitive security information in
accordance with federal law and regulation, and no person is entitled to demand or obtain
a copy from the Airport Director.

29



8.14.

8.2
8.2.1.

3.2.2.

8.2.3.

8.24.

8.3.
8.3.1.

8.3.2.

8.33.

8.3.4.

No person shall leave baggage or any articles unattended in or in the vicinity of the
Terminal. Unattended baggage and articles are subject to search, confiscation and
destruction by designated airport security personnel, on-duty federal, state and local law
enforcement officers and TSA officers.

Passenger and Baggage Screening

No person may enter a Sterile Area of the Airport without submitting to the screening of
their person and property by the TSA. This prohibition does not apply to entry into the
Sterile Area through doors and access points other than the passenger screening area by
appropriately-badged persons.

Any person who enters the passenger screening area within the Terminal is subject to
search by the TSA, regardless of whether the person declares their intent to withdraw from
the screening area.

No person may interfere with the screening of passengers and property by TSA officers.

No passenger shall enter or remain in a Sterile Area having in their possession any items
prohibited by the TSA or FAA.

Restricted Areas

No persons except aircraft operators, passengers or other duly authorized personnel shall
be permitted at any time on Airport property beyond the fence line dividing the Terminal
from the aircraft loading area or beyond the posted signs reading “No Trespassing” or
“Restricted Area” around the Airport perimeter. The Airport Director is authorized to
provide proper identification and passes for persons authorized admittance to “No
Trespassing” or “Restricted” areas.

All persons who seek access to the SIDA, Sterile Area or AOA must obtain the appropriate
badge from the Airport Director or be escorted by appropriate personnel, consistent with
the Airport Security Program.

Any person authorized to access the SIDA or Sterile Area must prominently display their
badge, above the waist on their outermost garment, at all times. Any person authorized to
access the AOA must be able to produce their badge when in the AOA.

It shall be unlawful, and grounds for immediate confiscation, suspension and possible
permanent revocation of a badge for any person to:

a. Be in the SIDA, Sterile Area or AOA without an escort or a badge.
b. Permit any other person to use their badge.
c. Wear another person's badge to gain access to or while in these areas.

d. Alter the badge.

30



835,

8.3.6.

8.3.7.

8.3.8.

8.4.
8.4.1.

8.4.2.

843.

8.44.

If a badge is lost or misplaced, the badge holder must notify the Airport Director
immediately and follow all administrative procedures for reissuance of the badge,
including a reissuance fee set by the Airport Director.

Only persons with unescorted access authority are permitted to escort. Persons who do not
have a valid-approved identification badge who wish to enter the SIDA or AOA can only
do so while under the escort of a person who has a valid badge for the applicable arca.

Persons who have gained authorized access to the SIDA, Sterile Area or AOA shall ensure
that the access door or gate has completely secured or locked behind them before leaving
the immediate vicinity of the door or gate, to ensure that no person gains unauthorized
access through such door or gate.

Each person shall immediately report malfunctioning or unattended access points to
Airport Operations.

Tampering

No person shall willfully tamper, alter, compromise, move or otherwise affect any security
device, sign, closed-circuit television camera, security key pad, electromagnetic locking
device or other such implement, or perimeter fence gate or gate tracking device.

No person may place any object within five (5) feet of the Airport perimeter fence or at
any location that would aid in climbing or obscuring visibility of the fence line.

No person shall willfully activate any security device or security alarm when no threat to
security or emergency condition exists.

No person shall block or damage doors, gates or card readers or leave doors or gates open
that could permit access to a restricted area by unauthorized persons.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

9.1.
9.1.1.

Fire Prevention

Open flames of any kind — including welding and cutting activities and as necessary for
aircraft Maintenance — are prohibited on Airport property without prior approval of the
Airport Director; and only in compliance with applicable building and fire codes. An
approved fire extinguisher and a person trained in its proper usage shall be present for the
duration of any approved activities involving open flames.

The use and storage of all flammable and Hazardous Materials shall be in compliance with
applicable Laws and ordinances, and the Airport SWPPP or Stormwater Management Plan,
as appropriate.

All combustible refuse shall be stored only in areas designated by the Airport Director and
in no event in an area less than 50 feet from any building or less than 35 feet from any
primary electric or telephone trunk.

31



9.14.

9.1.6.

9.1.7.

9.2,

9.2.1.

922,

9.2.3.

9.24.

9.2.5.

9.28.

9.3
9.3.1.

932,

The placement of any Hazardous Materials storage container, locker structure or bin on the
Airport shall comply with local fire code requirements and National Fire Protection
Association guidelines, and be approved by the Airport Director, as to type, placement,
size, and color.

.5. All heating equipment and Fuel burning appliances installed on the Airport shall conform

to the International Building Code and National Fire Protection Association guidelines and
comply with any additional requirements imposed by the Fire Marshal.

Hangar floors shall be kept free from accumulation of oil, grease, Flammable Liquids, rags,
or other waste materials.

All empty oil, paint and varnish cans, bottles or other containers shall be disposed of in an
appropriate and timely manner and shall not remain on the floor, wall stringers, or overhead
storage areas of the hangars or other buildings.

Sanitation and Solid Waste Management

Any activity that results in littering or causes environmental pollution on the Airport is not
permitted and violators are subject to arrest, prosecution and fines.

The storage of waste materials and trash at the Airport is prohibited unless placed in
receptacles provided for such purposes.

All outdoor trash or garbage containers shall be covered. Such containers shall be located
only in those areas approved for such use by the Airport Director. All operators using
commercial trash receptacles shall be responsible for the cleanliness of the trash collection
site.

All vehicles used for hauling trash, dirt, or other refuse materials on the Airport shall be
constructed so as to prevent their contents from dropping, shifting, leaking or escaping.

No person or Entity shall dispose of any fill or building materials or any other discarded or
waste materials on the Airport except as approved in writing by the Airport Director.

No person may burn refuse at the Airport.

Hazardous Materials Management

All persons on the Airport shall be responsible for compliance with federal, state and local
Laws concerning the use, handling, treatment, storage, discharge, disposal or transportation
of Hazardous Materials. These Laws include, without limitation, the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act; the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act; the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Emergency
Protection and Community Right-To-Know Act.

No person shall use, handle, treat, store, or transport Hazardous Materials on or at the
Airport except as reasonably necessary in the ordinary course of the person’s authorized

32



9.3.3.

934.

9355,

9.3.6.
9.3.1%.

9.3.8.

9.4.

9.4.1.

9.4.2.

9.4.3.

9.44.

9.4.5.

activities on the Airport and only if such Hazardous Materials are properly labeled and
contained, and notice of and a copy of the Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) is provided to the
Airport Director for each such Hazardous Material. SDSs for all Hazardous Materials shall
be maintained on site so as to be readily available to emergency responders in the event of
an emergency and for review by Airport Operations.

Approved Hazardous Materials must be stored in suitable containers that are property
secured and protected by secondary containment as necessary.

No person shall use, handle, treat, store, or transport Hazardous Materials at, in or on the
Airport at such time or place or in such manner or condition as to create an unreasonable
risk of harm to persons, property or the environment.

All persons whose duties and responsibilities involve the handling and storing of
Hazardous Materials and materials must have received proper training, as prescribed by
the U.S. Occupational Health and Safety Administration.

Used engine oil shall be disposed of only at approved waste oil stations or disposal points.

Aviation Fuels or automotive gasoline shall not be stored at the Airport without the prior
written permission of the Airport Director.

All persons on the Airport shall fully comply with the Airport SWPPP and/or Stormwater
Management Plan, as appropriate.

Spill Prevention and Response

Operators shall be familiar with and take all action consistent with the Airport or applicable
Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan (“SPCC”).

Any solid or liquid material, which may be spilled at the Airport, shall immediately be
cleaned up by the person responsible for such spillage. Responsible persons shall be liable
for the cost to remediate the release of any Hazardous Materials on the Airport.

Copies of all reports submitted to any federal, state, or local agency relating to any on-
Airport spill shall be provided to the Airport Director at the time submitted to such agency.

[f the responsible person fails to promptly undertake remediation activities in response to
the release of any Hazardous Materials, the Airport Director may, but is not obligated to,
perform such remediation. Any costs incurred by the Airport Director associated with
assessment and cleanup of the release will be billed to the responsible person, payable
within 30 days.

Hazardous waste generated in connection with the cleanup of a release of Hazardous
Materials shall promptly be removed and disposed appropriately. Absorbent material used
in connection with the cleanup shall not be left to sit longer than necessary.

33



9.4.6.

9.4.7.

9.4.8.

9.5.
L

253,

9.5.3.

9.54.

All Fuelers shall prepare and file an SPCC Plan with the Environmental Protection Agency
if the Airport’s SPCC Plan does not cover Fueler’s fueling operations. Fuelers shall
provide to the Airport Director a copy of their approved SPCC Plan or written
demonstration that Fueler’s fueling operations are covered by the Airport’s SPCC Plan.

Fuelers shall provide adequate procedures to prevent and limit Fuel spills and shall develop
Fuel spill contingency plans including notification and clean-up procedures.

Fuelers shall maintain and have readily available an adequate supply of Fuel absorbent
materials and other materials to dam, dike or divert a Fuel spill. Fuelers shall have, at a
minimum, enough materials to respond to a Fuel spill of up to 55 gallons and to prevent
Fuel flowage into storm drains.

Aircraft Cleaning and Painting

Aircraft cleaning shall be performed only in the areas and in the manner prescribed by the
Airport Director and in compliance with the Airport SWPPP and/or Stormwater
Management Plan, as appropriate.

Cleaning practices using combustible materials are prohibited within any building or within
50 feet of any building, aircraft, vehicle, Fuel storage facility, or fueling operation.

Aircraft painting shall be performed only in areas and in the manner prescribed by the
Airport Director.

The provision of aircraft Maintenance, cleaning and painting for commercial purposes
further shall be subject to the Airport Minimum Standards.

10. RATES AND CHARGES

10.1.
10.1.1.

10.1.2.

10.1.3.

Generally

The Board reserves the right to impose fees, rates and charges for use of the Airport for the
following purposes: to compensate for costs to operate, maintain and develop the Airport;
to make the Airport as self-sustaining as possible; to compensate for the privilege of
conducting commercial activities on and deriving revenue from the Airport; and to derive
a reasonable rate of return from the use of Airport facilities.

The Board may impose fees, rates and charges, including, but not limited to: landing fees,
terminal fees, passenger facility charges, Fuel flowage fees, rent for Airport property and
facilities, stormwater and utility fees, parking fees, access fees, concession and privilege
fees, and permit and administrative fees. This right to impose shall expressly include the
right to pass on any increases in such rates, charges and utility fees directly or indirectly
imposed on the Board by a third party.

The imposition of any and all such fees, rates and charges shall not affect a person’s
obligation to pay any taxes as may be assessed by an authorized taxing jurisdiction,
including without limitation possessory interest, sales and Fuel taxes.

34



10.1.4. The Airport Director reserves the right to review or approve the fees charged by persons
providing products and services to the public at the Airport, including the right to establish
by policy or contract limits on prices charged by Airport terminal concessions. The
foregoing reservation does not apply to the fees charged by commercial airlines.

10.2. Payment of Rents, Fees and Charges

10.2.1. All Entities and persons using the Airport shall pay the rents, fees, or other charges
specified by the Board for engaging in activities on the Airport.

10.2.2. Any failure to remain current in the payment of any and all rents, fees, charges and other
sums due (including increases in rents, fees and charges authorized by the Board after the
date of any agreement or approval) shall be grounds for revocation of any agreement or
approval, written or otherwise, authorizing the conduct of activities at the Airport. This
obligation shall include any increases in rents, fees or charges authorized by the Board.

10.3. Adoption and Administration

10.3.1. The Board may adopt and direct publication ofa schedule or schedules of rates and charges.
The rates and charges may be adjusted from time to time by the adoption and publication
of a new schedule. Neither the adoption nor amendment of the schedule of rates and
charges shall require an amendment to the Rules and Regulations.

10.3.2. All persons on the Airport will be liable to pay the then-current rates and charges applicable
to their use of, and activities on, the Airport, except in the event that a rate or charge is
established by a lease, permit or other agreement, and such lease, permit or other agreement
does not permit adjustment of the rates and charges by the means provided herein.

11. DEFINITIONS
As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

Abandoned Aircraft — Any aircraft left unattended and stationary on the airport property in
an inoperable condition and under such circumstances that evidence an intention by the
owner/operator to voluntarily surrender, relinquish or disclaim the aircraft. The length of time that
an aircraft has remained at the Airport without being used or moved is one factor to be used by the
Airport Director in determining whether the aircraft has been abandoned. An aircraft that has been
at the Airport without use for more than 180 days is presumed to be abandoned.

Abandoned Vehicle — Any vehicle which has remained stationary on the Airport in excess
of 72 hours and is in a condition that would render the vehicle inoperable including, but not limited
to, expired license plates, missing or flat tire, or broken window.

Accident — A collision between an aircraft or a vehicle, and an aircraft, vehicle, person,
stationary object or other object which results in property damage, bodily injury or death; or an
entry onto or emerging from a moving aircraft or vehicle by a person which results in bodily injury
or death to such person or some other person, or which results in property damage. (See 49 CFR
830.2.)

35



Aeronautical Activity — Any activity which involves, makes possible, or is required for the
operation of aircraft, or which contributes to or is required for the safety of such operations.

Air Carrier — A Commercial Aeronautical Operator holding an operating certificate under
Federal Aviation Regulation Part 121.

Aircraft Movement Area — The runways, taxiways, and other areas of the Airport utilized
for taxiing, take-off and landing of aircraft exclusive of aircraft loading Ramps and parking areas.

Airport —Pangborn Memorial Airport, including all of the area, buildings, facilities and
improvements within the interior boundaries of such Airport as it now exists or as it may be
hereafter or extended or enlarged and as depicted on a current Airport Layout Plan approved by
the Federal Aviation Administration.

Airport Director — The person hired to administer and direct the operation of the Airport
and to enforce and administer the Rules and Regulations and the Minimum Standards, as set forth
in the most current Delegation of Authority Resolution in effect from time to time, and such
Airport Director’s designee, if any, set out in said Delegation of Authority Resolution..

Airport Fuel Farm — One or more areas of the Airport designated and depicted on the
Airport Layout Plan to serve as the consolidated location for all aircraft fuel storage facilities.

Airport Layout Plan —The current, FAA-approved drawing depicting the physical layout of
the Airport and identifying the location and configuration of current and proposed runways,
taxiways, buildings, roadways, utilities, navigational aids, etc.

Airport Operations Area or “AOA” — The area of the Airport identified in the Airport
Security Program that includes the Aircraft Movement Areas, aircraft parking areas, loading
Ramps, Safety Areas, and any adjacent areas that are not separated by adequate security systems,
measures or procedures. All space on the Airport where the general public and users of the Airport
are restricted by fence or posting, or such areas where aircraft are parked or operated, or where
operations not open to the general public are conducted; and such term shall include, but is not
limited to, the aircraft Ramps, Aprons, taxiways and runways.

Airport Security Program — The written plan concerning security at the Pangborn Memorial
Airport, containing the elements required by 49 C.F.R. Part 1542 and approved by the
Transportation Security Administration.

Apron or Ramp — Those areas of the Airport within the AOA designated for the loading,
unloading, servicing or parking of aircraft.

ARFF — Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting.

Based Aircraft — Any aircraft whose operator leases tie-down or hangar space from the
Airport or an FBO or SASOs on a month-to-month or longer-term basis.

36



Board — The Governing Board of the Airport, as contemplated by the Replaced and
Restated Joint Operating Agreement (“2003”) between the Port of Chelan County and the Port of
Douglas County dated effective January 1, 2004 (the “2003 JOA™), which oversees the governance
of the Airport consistent with the 2003 JOA; provided that at such time as the Chelan Regional
Port Authority owns, manages and operates the Airport, the Board shall mean the Board of the
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority.

Chief Executive Officer - The Chief Executive Officer of the Chelan Douglas Regional
Port Authority, or such person as is authorized in a current Delegation of Authority Resolution by
the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authotity in effect from time to time.

C.E.R. — The United States Code of Federal Regulations.

Commercial Aeronautical Activity — Any commercial operation that is related to the
operation of Aircraft as prescribed in the Pangborn Memorial Airport Minimum Standards for
Commercial Aeronautical Activities. This does not include any commercial operation not directly
related to the operation of Aircraft, e.g. restaurant, rental car, or other concessions.

Commercial Aeronautical Operator — An Entity conducting a Commercial Aeronautical
Activity at the Airport pursuant to an Agreement with the Airport.

Commercial Non-Aeronautical Activity — Any commercial operation not directly related
to the operation of Aircraft, e.g. restaurant, rental car, or other concessions.

Commercial Self-Service Fueling — Fueling of an aircraft by the pilot using commercial
self-service aircraft fuel pumps installed for that purpose.

Commercial Vehicle — Any motor vehicle engaged in transporting persons to or from the
Airport, which transportation is provided in return for a fee or other compensation as part of a for-
profit business activity. The term Commercial Vehicle shall include taxicabs, a vehicle operating
under a fransportation network company” (“TNC™) such as by way of example and without
limitation, Uber, Lyft, or Wingz, or other car for hire services, and non-courtesy shuttle vehicles.
However, the term Commercial Vehicle shall not include a hotel, resort, guided tour or other courtesy
vehicle for which a separate transportation fee or charge is not collected by the provider of such
service from the transported person (a “Courtesy Vehicle”). See also, Small Commercial Vehicle
and Large Commercial Vehicle.

Courtesy Vehicle - a hotel, resort, guided tour or other courtesy vehicle for which a separate
transportation fee or charge is not collected by the provider of such service from the transported
person.

Driver — Every person who drives, operates or is in actual physical control of a vehicle.

Entity — Any person, firm, general or limited partnership, corporation, trust, association or
similar Entity making application for, leasing or using any land or facility at the Airport.

FAA — The Federal Aviation Administration.

37



Fixed Base Operator or FBO — Means any Entity that maintains and operates facilities at
the Airport for the purpose of providing commercial aeronautical services including by way of
example and without limitation the retail sale of aviation fuels, aircraft line services, and/or aircraft
airframe and engine repair and Maintenance at the Airport, as authorized by a written agreement
with the Airport.

Flammable Liquid — Any liquid which emits a flammable vapor at or below a temperature
of 100 degrees Fahrenheit, as determined by flash point from a Tagliabue Open Cup Tester, and
shall include, but is not limited to, any other combustible liquids currently used for aircraft fuels.

Flying Club — A nonprofit or not-for-profit Entity organized for the express purpose of
providing its members with the noncommercial use of aircraft for their personal use and
enjoyment.

Fuel — The substance, either solid, liquid or gaseous, used to operate any engine in aircraft
or vehicles.

Fuel Handling — The transporting, delivering, fueling or draining of Fuel or Fuel waste
products

Fueler — A person that is permitted to store, handle and dispense Fuel, whether for sale to
the public at large or for purposes of Self-Fueling

General Aviation — All phases of aviation other than aircraft manufacturing, military
aviation, scheduled, nonscheduled and regulated Air Carrier operations.

Hazardous Material(s) — A substance or material in a quantity or form that may pose an
unreasonable risk to health or safety, or property when stored, transported, or used in commerce
as defined by the U.S. Department of Transportation.

Incident - an occurrence other than an accident, associated with the operation of an aircraft,
which affects or could affect the safety of operations. (See 49 CFR 830.2.)

Large Commercial Vehicle - Any Commercial Vehicle intended to carry more than 6
passengers.

Laws — All Federal, state, Board, local and Board laws, codes, statutes, ordinances, orders,
policies, rules and regulations, applicable to activities on the Airport, all as may be in existence,
hereafter enacted, and amended from time to time.

Maintenance — Aircraft inspection, overhaul, repair, preservation and replacement of parts,
including preventative maintenance, as described in Part 43 of the Federal Aviation Regulations.

Minimum Standards — The Pangborn Memorial Airport Minimum Standards for
Commercial Aeronautical Activities, as adopted on December 19, 2017, and as amended if
amended, which set forth the minimum requirements that must be met to conduct a Commercial
Aeronautical Activity on the Airport.

38



Notice to Airmen or “NOTAM” — A notice filed with an aviation authority to alert aircraft
pilots of potential hazards along a flight route or at a location that could affect the safety of the
flight.

NTSB — The National Transportation Safety Board.

Permittee — The owner or exclusive operator of an aircraft authorized to Self-Fuel pursuant
to a Self-Fueling permit or Agreement.

Rules and Regulations — These rules and regulations, as promulgated and/or amended from
time to time to protect the public health, safety, interest and welfare on Pangborn Memorial
Airport, and to augment relevant ordinances and resolutions pertaining to the Airport.

Safety Areas — The runway and taxiways and the surrounding runway safety areas and
taxiway safety areas at the Airport.

Security Identification Display Area or SIDA — The portion of the Airport identified in the
Airport Security Program and in which security training, criminal history background check, and
identification are required. This area is where aircraft operators and foreign Air Carriers that have
a security program under 49 C.F.R. Part 1544 or 1546 enplane and deplane passengers and sort
and load baggage, and any adjacent areas that are not separated by adequate security measures.

Self-Fueling — The fueling of an aircraft by the owner of the aircraft, or the owner’s
employee, using the owner’s vehicles, equipment and resources. Fueling of an aircraft by a pilot
at a Commercial Self-Service Fueling station is not considered Self-Fueling.

Small Commercial Vehicle — A Commercial Vehicle intended to carry 6 or fewer persons.

Specialized Aeronautical Service Operator or SASO — An Entity that is authorized to
provide one or a combination of Commercial Aeronautical Activities that does not include
commercial fueling.

Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plan (“SPCC Plan™) — A contingency plan
defined by the Environmental Protection Agency that covers procedures for spill prevention,
control, and countermeasures, points of contact, the chain of command, and individual
responsibilities.

Sterile Area — The portion of the Terminal identified in the Airport Security Program that
provides passenger access to boarding aircraft and to which access generally is controlled by the
Transportation Security Administration or by an aircraft operator or a foreign Air Carrier, through
the screening of persons and property. The Sterile Area begins immediately after the passenger
screening checkpoints in the Terminal.

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan or “SWPP” — A plan that identifies the controls that
have been put in place to minimize the impact of storm water discharges on the environment.

Terminal — The commercial passenger terminal at the Airport.

39



TNC - Transportation Network Company, such as by way of example and without
limitation, Uber, Lyft or Wingz.

TSA — The Transportation Security Administration.

40



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Cashmere Mill District




Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Cashmere Mill District - Property History

As of December 31, 2019

Sale of Property:

11/22/2017

Debt:
1/9/2008

1/9/2008
12/28/2010

1/31/2012

8/3/2018

LTI Development, LLC (Louws) - 3.53 acres
Cost Basis
Loss on Disposal

Series A Bond - Paid in Full 01/2018

Series B Bond - Refunded in 2010
Series 2010E - Refund of Above - Paid in Full 12/2017

CERB Loan - Sunset Hwy Improvements

20 Year Amortization, 5 Year Principal Deferral
Interest Rate: 3.4%

Annual Payment: $75,780

Last Payment Date: January 31, 2031
Balance at 12/31/19

Banner Bank GO Bond - Building Construction

20 Year Amortization

Interest Rate: 4.19% then adjustable after 5 years
Semi-Annual Payments: $109,567.08

Last Payment Date: August 3, 2038

Balance at 12/31/19

Building Construction

Building A - 16,537 squ ft

Core & Shell

Tenant Improvements

Building B - 16,720 squ ft

Core & Shell

Tenant Improvements

$  375,000.00

(856,735.86)
$ (481,735.86)
$  750,000.00
$ 777,272.73
$ 783,032.24
$ 833,146.52
$ 736,625.17
$ 3,000,000.00
$ 2,833,775.75
$ 3,882,397.89

332,522.64
$ 4,214,920.53
$ 2,763,933.89

977,476.37
$ 3,741,410.26




Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Cashmere Mill District - Property History

As of December 31, 2019

Investment History

Date
1/9/2008
6/30/2008
11/30/2008
12/31/2009
12/31/2010
5/31/2011
12/31/2012
12/31/2012
12/31/2012
12/31/2012
12/31/2012
12/31/2012
12/31/2013
1/1/2013
12/31/2013
11/25/2014
5/22/2014
5/21/2014
5/15/2014
7/15/2014
Total

Improvement

Land Purchase

Signage

Access Project

Site Clean-up

Site Clean-up

Bldg Demolition

Professional Fees

Sunset Hwy Entrance
Stormwater project

Berm Enhancement
Engineering Frontage

Legal Fees

Legal Fees

Land/Survey BLA

Wood Waste Removal Phase |
Wood Waste Removal
Hydraulic Project Approval Permit
Beaver Management Plan RH2
Beaver Dam Breaching Project
Pond Leveler Project - Brender Creek

Sunset Hwy Improvements - Granted to City of Cashmere

2011

Funding Sources

1/9/2008
1/9/2008
2012/2013
2013-2015

Series A Bond

Series B Bond

CERB Loan - Sunset Hwy
Department of Ecology Grants

Total Funding Sources

Total Costs Allocated to Land Basis:

North of Sunset
Center

South

South - Sold

Total Land Basis

2.13 acres $
6.02 acres

19.29 acres (incl. 8.12 riparian)
3.53 acres (owned by Louws)

118,269.64
2,478,598.92

4,644,301.25

856,735.86

Cost
$ 1,496,667.57
1,303.48
18,767.16
556,308.45
508,324.47
6,845.59
88,645.11
975.00
63,661.60
5,549.95
340.34
8,758.98
30,377 .48
31,518.68
1,920,789.96
3,379,412.49
150.00
9,862.00
8,277.30
10,441.30

$ 8,146,976.91

$ 1,107,316.28

$ 750,000.00
TIP 2T 2. T3
833,146.52

5,167,385.63

$ 7,527,804.88

$ 8,097,905.67_

per acre
$ 55,525.65
411,727.40
240,762.12
242,701.38



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Cashmere Mill District - Property History
As of December 31, 2019

Sale of Property:

11/22/2017

Debt:
1/9/2008

1/9/2008
12/28/2010

1/31/2012

8/3/2018

LTI Development, LLC (Louws) - 3.53 acres
Cost Basis
Loss on Disposal

Series A Bond - Paid in Full 01/2018

Series B Bond - Refunded in 2010
Series 2010E - Refund of Above - Paid in Full 12/2017

CERB Loan - Sunset Hwy Improvements

20 Year Amortization, 5 Year Principal Deferral
Interest Rate: 3.4%

Annual Payment: $75,780

Last Payment Date: January 31, 2031
Balance at 12/31/19

Banner Bank GO Bond - Building Construction

20 Year Amortization

Interest Rate: 4.19% then adjustable after 5 years
Semi-Annual Payments: $109,567.08

Last Payment Date: August 3, 2038

Balance at 12/31/19

Building Construction
Building A - 16,537 squ ft

Core & Shell

Tenant Improvements

Building B - 16,720 squ ft

Core & Shell

Tenant Improvements

$ 375,000.00
(856,735.86)

%

(481,735.86)

$  750,000.00
$ 77727273
$ 783,032.24
$  833,146.52
$  736,625.17

$ 3,000,000.00

$ 2,833,775.75

$ 3,882,397.89
332,522.64

$ 4,214,920.53

$ 2,763,933.89
977,476.37

$ 3,741,410.26




Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Cashmere Mill District - Property History
As of December 31, 2019

Building Leases
Blue Spirits Distilling LLC
Building A - 6,831 square feet
Rent Commencement Date: 10/03/2019
Term: Five Years
Rate: $0.75/square foot + amortized LH Improvements over 30 yrs at 4%
Initial Rate: $6,352.83/month
Option to Extend: Two (2) - Five (5) year terms with 3% annual increase
Security Deposit: $7,000
Allocated utilities & maintenance are pass-thru to tenant

Hurst International LLC
Building B - 6,434 square feet
Rent Commencement Date: 11/01/2019
Term: Five Years
Rate: $0.70/square foot + $0.30 amortized LH improvements
Initial Rate: $3,217.00 Months 1 -6
$6,434.00 Months 7 - 60
Option to Extend: Two (2) - Five (5) year terms with 3% annual increase
Security Deposit: $7,000
Allocated utilities & maintenance are pass-thru to tenant

2019 Activity Building A Building B
Square Footage 16,537 16,720
Revenues:
Lease Income $ 1864863 $ 6,434.00
Reimbursements 1,867.74 150825
Total Revenue 20,516.37 7,993.25
Expenses:
Property Insurance 12,487.50 12,487.50
Utilities 7,194.67 8,171.72
Repairs & Maintenance (Snowplowing) 1,635.45 1,635.45
Total Expense 21,317.62 22,294.67
Net Cash Flow on Buildings $ (801.25) $ (14,301.42)
Other Property Maintenance
Noxious Weed Control $ 1,300.80
Brender Creek Maintenance 2,841.17
$ 4,141.97

2020 Projected Lease Revenue $ 76,234.00 $ 64,340.00




Chelan Douglas Regional

Port Authority

Memo

To: Board of Directors

From: %im Kuntz
ccC: None
Date: February 20, 2020

Re: Resolution in Support of Dams within the Federal Columbia-
Snake River System

A host of Mid-Columbia Port Districts are asking Port Districts
throughout the state to adopt a resolution in support of preserving
the federally owned and operated Ice Harbor, Lower Monumental,
Little Goose, and Lower Granite Dams.

Please find enclosed a draft resolution for your consideration.

This past summer, a host of PUD’s adopted resolutions in support of
the dams and | have attached Chelan County PUD’s resolution for
your reference.



CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY IN
SUPPORT OF DAMS WITHIN THE FEDERAL COLUMBIA-SNAKE RIVER
SYSTEM.

Whereas, the Lower Snake River Dams enable irrigation for over 7 million acres of
farmland producing $8 billion in agricultural income; and

Whereas, the Lower Snake River Dams enabled barging of approximately 9 million
tons of cargo in 2014 valued at over $3 billion; and

Whereas, the Federal Columbia-Snake River System (“FCSRS") is the top wheat
export gateway in the U.S. handling over half of the country's exported wheat from 11 U.S.
states, is the second most important export system in the U.S. for corn and soybeans, and
is the west coast's largest export system for wood products and minerals; and

Whereas, the 465-mile federal waterway provides access to internal markets for
Washington state farmers and farmers as far as the Midwest; and

Whereas, over 3.5 million tons of cargo were barged on 244 four-barge tows on
the Snake River in 2017, a year when the locks were closed for three months for
maintenance. In comparison, it would have taken over 35,140 rail cars or 135,000 semi-
trucks to carry this same cargo; and

Whereas, annually the river cruise boat industry brings approximately 30,000
passengers and crew up the Columbia River to the Snake River, providing once-in-a-
lifetime personal experiences and creating a positive economic impact to the region; and

Whereas, high-technology firms have located facilities in Chelan and Douglas
County and throughout the Pacific Northwest because of the availability of reliable, carbon-
free hydropower, creating jobs and boosting local economies; and

Whereas, the federal agencies responsible for the management of the Federal
Columbia River Power System (FCRPS) (Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), Army
Corps of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation) operate the dams in compliance with the
Biological Opinions (BiOps) approved by the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA) Fisheries in 2008/2010 (as supplemented in 2014), and in 2019; and

Whereas, BPA has spent nearly $17 billion on infrastructure and fish mitigation
projects since 1978 including projects that address hydroelectric operations, habitat,
hatcheries and harvest; and

Whereas, those investments, made in accordance with Biological Opinions
approved by NOAA Fisheries, have successfully improved fish runs resulting in greater
than 96% of young salmon making it past each of the dams on their down river passage;
and

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2020-03 Supporting Snake River Dams Page 1 of 3



Whereas, in 2014, there were more chinook, sockeye, and coho salmon that
returned to Bonneville Dam than any year since the dam was built in 1938; and

Whereas, reports from NOAA Fisheries indicate that Columbia/Snake River
chinook salmon returns increased in 2018; and

Whereas, while 2017 and 2018 saw significant declines in overall salmon returns,
studies by NOAA Fisheries have attributed those declines to ocean conditions that are
expected to dissipate by 2020, leading experts to forecast improved overall salmon returns
in that; and

Whereas, the 31 federal dams on the Columbia and Snake Rivers provide a
reliable source of clean energy for millions of residents of Washington state and the Pacific
Northwest; and

Whereas, the Lower Snake River Dams annually produce 1,000 megawatts of
carbon free power, enough to serve nearly half a million Northwest businesses, industries
and households and represents 2,000 megawatts of firm winter capacity; and

Whereas, the BPA has identified the Lower Snake River Dams as critical
components of the FCRPS mission of supporting peak power generation; and

Whereas, the Lower Snake River Dams are some of the least expensive to operate
and, with the cost of power generated by the dams ranging from $10 to $14 per megawatt-
hour, provide some of the greatest value for BPA customers; and

Whereas, removing over 2,000 megawatts of firm winter capacity generated by the
Lower Snake River Dams would add to a forecasted Northwest shortfall in energy capacity;
and

Whereas, the hydro system is in large part responsible for the clean air, water and
lands enjoyed by millions in the Pacific Northwest; and

Whereas, the State of Washington has passed legislation calling for 100% of all
retail energy sales to come from carbon free resources by 2045; and

Whereas, the passage of Substitute Senate Bill 5116 included existing hydropower
as an eligible resource for utilities seeking compliance with the 100% clean requirement;
and

Whereas, the clean and renewable energy generated by the hydro system has
made Washington state a national and world leader in responsible environmental
stewardship; and

Whereas, the removal of the four Lower Snake River Dams would do irreparable
damage to Washington and the Pacific Northwest’s role as a leader in clean, carbon free
energy production.

Now Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port
Authority does hereby resolve as follows:

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority supports the continued operation of
the dams within the Federal Columbia-Snake River System due to their importance to

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2020-03 Supporting Snake River Dams Page 2 of 3



producing carbon-free, renewable, low cost energy, irrigation, flood control, recreation,
and low-emission cargo transportation.

Based on studies and BiOps carried out by NOAA Fisheries, the Board of Directors
endorses the position that hydroelectric dams and salmon can coexist. The Board opposes
the removal of the Lower Snake River Dams.

The foregoing Resolution of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority was duly adopted
by its Board of Directors at its meeting of the 25th day of February, 2020.

DATED and SIGNED this 25t day of February, 2020.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority at a
regular meeting thereof held this 25t day of February, 2020.

JC Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director
Donn Etherington, Director Mark Spurgeon, Director
Rory Turner, Director W. Alan Loebsack, Director

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2020-03 Supporting Snake River Dams Page 3 of 3



19-14381

RESOLUION NO.

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE MANY
BENEFITS OF HYDROPOWER AND OPPOSING
THE REMOVAL OF THE LOWER SNAKE RIVER
DAMS

FACTUAL BACKGROUND AND REASONS FOR ACTION

Hydropower is a premier renewable resource that optimizes river systems to
accomplish multiple objectives and provide cost-effective electricity;

Hydropower plays an increasingly critical role in the modern electric system
as our nation pursues a low-carbon, affordable, reliable and resilient grid;

Hydropower is unique among generating resources because it can provide all
the attributes necessary for a reliable and resilient electric grid, including energy and
capacity, regulation and frequency response, spinning and non-spinning reserves,
flexibility, storage, inertia, and black start capability:

Hydropower provides a foundation for reliability that is necessary in a
generation portfolio with high levels of variable energy resources;

The Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) has identified the Lower Snake
River Dams as critical components of the FCRPS mission of supporting peak power
generation;

The Lower Snake River Dams annually produce 1,000 average megawatts of
carbon free power and represents 2,000 megawatts of firm winter capacity;

The Northwest Power Planning and Conservation Council has forecasted that
the region will be resource short and need to add an estimated 400 megawatts of new
effective capacity by 2021;

A 2017 study by Energy & Environmental Economics has shown the value of
hydropower in an increasingly carbon-constrained electric sector:

The State of Washington enacted the Clean Energy Transformation, which
recognizes existing hydropower as renewable and calls for 100 percent of all retail
energy sales to come from carbon free resources by 2045;

Fish runs have improved under the Federal Columbia River Power System
Biological Opinion, with 96 percent of young salmon successfully migrating past
federal dams, proving that fish and dams can co-exist;



Resolution No, 1 g = 1 ‘ 3 8 1

Page 2

A court-ordered environmental review process of federal hydropower system
operations under the National Environmental Policy Act is underway and will be
completed by 2020;

ACTION

IT IS RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN COUNTY, as follows:

Section 1. that Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County affirms
hydropower is a cornerstone of a modernized, clean, reliable and affordable electric
system that leads to a healthy economy and environment.

Section 2. that Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County recognizes the
$17 billion in significant investments of the Bonneville Power Administration and its
electric customers in fish and wildlife programs,

Section 3. that Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County opposes the
removal of the Lower Snake River dams because they are significant, carbon-free
capacity resources in the Northwest.

Section 4. that Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County believes the
NEPA review expected in 2020 will provide important information to regional
stakeholders about current and future FCRPS operations.

DATED this 16" day of September 2019),( 7&/
D

Prebidemm—
ATTEST:
.'{ /") N )
B //-’;/(;‘h %’éfﬂ-ﬂm\_ﬂ [ /\a ( l L] f.\“" 1 — TR
Vice Presidént ' Secretary \

DN

Commissioner v




Chelan Douglas Regional

Port Authority

Memo

To: Board of Directors
From: /éﬁm Kuntz
cc: None

Date: February 20, 2020

Re: City of Rock Island — Chelan County PUD Relicensing of
Rock Island Dam

The City of Rock Island has decided to become an active participant
in Chelan County PUD’s relicensing of Rock Island Dam. The Mayor
has formed a working group and | attended the first meeting his
request.

The Regional Port has been asked to send a letter to the PUD in
support of Rock Island wanting the PUD to fund a recreation vision
and strategic plan. This is the first step in asking the PUD to fund
major recreational improvements in the City of Rock Island during the
FERC relicense process of Rock Island Dam.

Attached is the draft letter | am being asked to sign. It was written by
a consultant hired by the City.

As the Regional Port, we also need to be sensitive to other similar
requests. For instance, Chelan County wants a park for the Malaga
community. They are actively engaged with the PUD as well.



| would like some Board discussion and input on this matter.

Let’s discuss Tuesday.



February 18, 2020

Justin Erickson

Managing Director, District Services

Chelan County PUD No. 1

327 N. Wenatchee Ave., Wenatchee, WA 98801

RE: Rock Island Hydroelectric Project Relicensing (P-943): Early-Action Project Solicitation Process
for Proposed Recreational and Environmental Project Investments

Dear Mr. Erickson,

[ am writing this letter on behalf of the Chelan-Douglas Port District to support the City of Rock
Island’s efforts to receive funding from Chelan County PUD to develop a Recreation Vision and
Strategic Plan. Rock Island should be fully funded to develop this Plan to avoid further delays of
providing equitable access to recreational activities within the Rock Island FERC project boundary.

I 'am of the understanding Chelan PUD is working with the City to enter into a separate
agreement to provide financial and staff resources to improve the level of service and access to existing
areas impacted by on-going project operations including the various ponds/lakes, as well as safe
shoreline access to the Columbia River. The City is a low income, minority community with limited
financial resources to engage with Chelan PUD on any level and it would be just to support the City’s
meaningful participation for on-going and future project operations.

In 2019, the City of Rock Island and the Port District partnered to develop a Rock Island
Waterfront Subarea Planned Action and Environmental Impact Statement. The approximately 207-acre
planning area is adjacent to the Rock Island FERC project boundary. The Port District will continue our
partnership with the City to ensure the Recreation Vision and Strategic Plan compliments and supports
the intent of the Subarea Plan — Economic Development. The Port is a dedicated partner with the City as
we fully recognize the value of strategic planning to provide linkage from the City to surrounding
communities and throughout the Waterfront Subarea to maximize public benefits.

As Port Director, and consistent with Mayor Agnew’s position, I too will be sensitive to any
correlation between project impacts in and around the City of Rock Island and equity. Please do not
hesitate to contact me if you would like to discuss the Port’s support to fund the City of Rock Island
through early actions and through a separate agreement.

Sincerely

Jim Kuntz, Chelan-Douglas County Port Director



Chelan Douglas Regional

Port Authority

Memo

To: Board of Directors

From: /' Jim Kuntz
cc: None
Date: February 20, 2020

Re: Pangborn Airport Cafe

Please find enclosed a proposal from Ryan Ochoa to operate the
Pangborn Airport Café. Rent would be $350.00 per month which
includes utilities.

While this does not need Board approval, | wanted you to be aware of
the proposal. We plan on proceeding with a lease agreement.



EAGLE ROCK CAFE
PROPOSAL OVERVIEW FOR FOOD AND
BEVERAGE OPERATION

Pangborn Airport Cafe

OVERVIEW

Eagle Rock Cafe is pleased to submit this proposal for food and beverage operation of the Pangborn Airport in
achieving its goals for improving passenger satisfaction by providing food, beverage and shopping for its airport cafe.
Additionally, we will utilize the available kitchen during downtime to produce a locally crafted beef jerky product
available to passengers as a snack or gift. We look to partner with other local producers and craft makers throughout
the Chelan-Douglas region to showcase those who are committed to quality customer experience such as 0.G's
Jerky, Mela Coffee, Stemilt Growers, and Liberty Orchards.

1. Provide Café Operation for all flights
ﬂ Availability to begin servicing passengers for all departing flights
o Consistent Schedule of operating hours: Proposed 5am-Bpm M-F, Weekends as demand increases

= Menu choices: Provide grab&go food choices along with sit down meals for breakfast and dinner

e Beverage Services: Provide wide array of choice beverages, coffee bar and tea

2. Menu
ﬂ Menu to be inspired by passenger trends and requests
e Popular American Breakfast Items: Bagels and croissants sandwiches, burritos, hashbrowns, fruit cups, yogurt

e Café Lunch: Rotating lunch of the day, Sandwiches, Paninis, salads, soups, fries
o Self Service: Grab and go items available for quick service

3. Shopping
n Value add for passengers with leisurely time
e Traveler accessories: Cell phone chargers, headphones, books

e Locally produced merchandise: Souvenirs, gifts, apparel and jewelry with local highlights
o Comfortable café experience: Relaxed and comfortable shopping scene with seating



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Calendar of Events

Updated as of 02-20-2020

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
Commissioners
February 21 Friday GWATATV - Filming, 11:00am, NCW Life Turner & Huffman
February 22-23 Saturday - Sunday NW Aviation Conference & Trade Show, Puyallup - Trent, Ron R.
February 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
February 26 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
Wenatchee Downtown Association Appreciation Dinner; |[Commissioner Tickets: Members =535/Non=$45 - Purchased
February 26 Wednesday 5:30 pm-8:00 pm, Convention Center Turner, Jim K, Ticket for Jim.
February 27 Thursday Chamber Business After Hours; Ex. Flight; 5pm CDRPA Hosting Event
Commissioner
Turner, Jim K, Ron
March 4 Wednesday Stehekin Meeting, 10:00 am, CDRPA Office C PUD and County will have attendees
March 1-5 Sunday-Thursday Pacific Northwest Waterways Association - Mission to DC
Commissioners
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Banquet, 5:30 pm- 9:00 pm, |Etherington, & We get 4 free tickets & we purchased 4
March 5 Thursday Convention Center Spurgeon additional. Table seats 10
March 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
March 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
March 12 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC JC Baldwin
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
March 17 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
March 18-22 Wed - Sunday Commissioner Baldwin out of area
March 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
March 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
March 25 Wednesday OVOF Awards Event; 5:30pm Pybus "Twisp" Documentary showing at event
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
March 25 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C,




Time Value Investments/Public Funds Investment Class"

March 26 Thursday Lynnwood Monica Hotel Booked for Monica
March 26 Thursday Partners Breakfast; 7:30am; Convention Center
March 26 Thursday GA Meeting; 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm, CDRPA Office
March 30-April 2 Monday - Thursday Washington DC Outreach Visit
Craig,
Commissioner
April 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
April 9 Thursday CDTC Executive Committee Meeting, CTC, time TBD Baldwin
WPPA Facilities Committee Meeting, Port of Seattle
April 10 Friday Seatac Offices, 10:00am-2:00pm Stacie
April 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
April 14 Tuesday Tri Commission Meeting; CTC, 1:00pm-3:00pm
April 15 Wednesday GWATA Pre-Event Flywheel
April 15-17 Wednesday - Friday Volaire Air Service Forum St. Augustine, FL Trent Trent Booked his trip
April 16 Thursday GWATA Flywheel
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
April 21 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
April 22 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
Economic Leadership Roundtable Lunch; 11:30 am ; 230
April 23 Thursday N. Georgia, E. Wen.
April 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Cashmere Chamber of Commerce Banquet; 5:30pm-
May 1 Friday 8:30pm
May 6-8 Wed-Friday WPPA Spring Meeting; Skamania Lodge; Stevenson
May 10-13 Sunday-Wednesday AAAE Annual Conference; Denver, CO
May 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
May 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
May 14 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC JC Baldwin




Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,

May 19 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
May 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
May 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
May 27 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
June 1-3 Monday - Wednesday  |WA Airport Manager's Assh; Winthrop, WA
June 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
June 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
June 10-12 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Campbell's Resort
Commissioner
June 11 Thursday CDTC, 8-11am, CTC Baldwin
June 13 Saturday Aviation Day - Pangborn Airport
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
June 16 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
June 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
June 20 Saturday Stehekin Airport Volunteer Clean-up Day
June 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
June 24 Wednesday Partners Breakfast; 7:30am; Convention Center
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
June 24 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
June 25 Thursday GA Meeting; 6:00 pm - 8:00pm, CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
July 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
July 9 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin
July 9-10 Thur-Friday WPPA Director's Seminar; Location TBD
July 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
July 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
Economic Leadership Roundtable Lunch; 11:30 am ; 230
July 16 Thursday N. Georgia, E. Wen.
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
July 21 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room




—

WPPA Commissioners Seminar; Marcus Whitman, Walla

July 20-22 Tues-Friday Walla
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
July 22 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
July 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
August 11 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
|August 12 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
August 13 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
|August 18 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
August 19 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
August 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Group;
August 26 Wednesday 2:20-4:30p Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
September 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
September 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
September 10 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
September 15 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
September 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm
September 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
September 23 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
September 24 Thursday Partners Breakfast; 7:30am ; Convention Center
September 24 Thursday GA Meeting; 6:00 pm - 8:00pm, CDRPA Office
September 24-25 |Thur-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook Resort
October 4-7 Sun - Thurs NWAAAE Annual Conference; Jackson Hole, WY
Commissioner
October 8 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin




October 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
October 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Economic Leadership Roundtable Lunch; 11:30 am ; 230
October 15 Thursday N. Georgia, E. Wen.
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
October 20 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
October 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
October 22-23 Thur-Friday WPPA Small Ports Seminar; Enzian Leavenworth
October 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
October 28 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
November 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
November 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
November 12 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin
TBD TBD Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Retreat - TBD
November 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
November 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
November 25 Wednesday Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm Jim Kuntz, Ron C.
November 26-27 |Thur-Friday Thanksgiving Holiday Office Closed
December 2-4 Tuesday - Friday WPPA Annual Meeting, Hyatt Regency, Bellevue
December 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office
Craig,
Commissioner
December 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Board Meeting, Chelan City Hall; 9:00 am Huffman
Commissioner
December 10 Thursday CDTC, 9-11am, CTC Baldwin
Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am,
December 15 Tuesday Chamber Conference Room
December 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting, 3-5pm, Mercantile
December 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM; CDRPA Office




December 23

Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory
Meeting, CDRPA Office , 2:30 pm - 4:00 pm

Jim Kuntz, Ron C.




